
PWYLLGOR GWASANAETHAU DEMOCRATAIDD

9.30 AM - DYDD MAWRTH, 3 MAWRTH 2020

Ystafelloedd Pwyllgor 1/2, Canolfan Ddinesig, Port Talbot

Rhan 1

1. Datganiadau o fudd  

2. Cofnodion y Cyfarfod Blaenorol  (Tudalennau 3 - 6)

3. Panel Annibynnol Cymru ar Gydnabyddiaeth Ariannol  (Tudalennau 
7 - 26)

4. Grwp Archwilio Anabledd  (Tudalennau 27 - 78)

5. Asesu Adnoddau ar gyfer y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd  
(Tudalennau 79 - 86)

6. Blaenraglen Waith 2018-19  (Tudalennau 87 - 90)

7. Mynediad i gyfarfodydd  
Penderfynu eithrio’r cyhoedd rhag yr eitem ganlynol yn unol ag 
Adran 100A (4) a (5) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Lleol 1972, a 
Pharagraffau 12 a 13 Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A o’r Ddeddf uchod.

Rhan 2

8. Cynigion Gweddarlledu  (Tudalennau 91 - 110)

9. Eitemau brys  
Unrhyw eitemau brys yn ôl disgresiwn y Cadeirydd yn unol ag
adran 100B (4) (b) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.

AGENDA



S.Phillips
Prif Weithredwr

Canolfan Ddinesig
Port Talbot                                                          26 Chwefror 2020

Aelodaeth y Pwyllgor:

Cadeirydd: J.D.Morgan

Is-gadeirydd: A.R.Aubrey

Aelodau Cynghorwyr S.apDafydd, M.Harvey, J.Hurley, 
S.Miller, S.Pursey, S.Renkes, A.Llewelyn, 
A.J.Richards, S.K.Hunt a/ac E.V.Latham



- 1 -

Dydd Iau, 14 Tachwedd 2019

PWYLLGOR GWASANAETHAU DEMOCRATAIDD

(Committee Room 1/2 - Port Talbot Civic Centre)

Aelodau sy’n Bresennol: Dydd Iau, 14 Tachwedd 2019

Cadeirydd: Cynghorydd J.D.Morgan

Cynghorwyr: S.apDafydd, M.Harvey, J.Hurley, S.Miller, 
S.Pursey, S.Renkes, A.J.Taylor a/ac S.K.Hunt

Swyddogion sy’n 
Bresennol:

K.Jones, C.Furlow-Harris, S.Curran a/ac 
A.Manchipp

1. COFNODION Y CYFARFOD BLAENOROL

Cymeradwywyd cofnodion y cyfarfod blaenorol a gynhaliwyd ar 12 
Medi 2019 fel cofnod cywir.

Nododd yr aelodau'r diweddariadau canlynol:

 Yn dilyn cyfarfod diweddar, cadarnhaodd Banel Annibynnol 
Cymru ar Gydnabyddiaeth Ariannol (IRPW) ei fod yn cytuno â 
barn yr aelodau, sef y dylai CThEM ymdrin â'r lwfans gofalwr fel 
ad-daliad ac na ddylid ei drethu. Awgrymodd yr IRPW y dylai 
awdurdodau lleol ysgrifennu at CThEM ar y cyd. Roedd 
awdurdodau wedi cytuno i ddarparu templed ar gyfer y llythyr 
hwn, fodd bynnag, nid oedd hyn wedi'i dderbyn hyd yn hyn. 
Byddai Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd felly'n llunio 
ymateb ac yn ei ddosbarthu i awdurdodau lleol eraill er 
gwybodaeth.

 Mewn perthynas ag Adroddiad Blynyddol y pwyllgor, cytunwyd 
cyflwyno hyn i'r cyngor er gwybodaeth.

2. DIWEDDARIAD AR GRŴP CYFEIRIO TGCH YR AELODAU

Rhoddwyd adroddiad cynnydd y Grŵp Cyfeirio TG i'r pwyllgor. 
Trafododd yr aelodau'r defnydd o'r cais Gwaith Achos, yr oedd 

Tudalen3

Eitem yr Agenda2



- 2 -

Dydd Iau, 14 Tachwedd 2019

aelodau wedi derbyn cyflwyniad arno'n flaenorol. Cytunwyd y dylid 
anfon yr wybodaeth hon ymlaen at y grwpiau gwleidyddol ac y 
gofynnir iddynt asesu faint o ddiddordeb sydd ynddo cyn ei ystyried 
ymhellach.   

Mewn perthynas â threialu Office 365, gofynnodd yr aelodau pryd y 
byddai hyn yn cael ei gyflwyno.  Dywedodd Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd y gofynnir i'r Rheolwr TGCh am gynllun 
cyflwyno. 

PENDERFYNWYD y byddai'r adroddiad yn cael ei nodi.

 
 

3. AROLWG DRAFFT AR GYFER AELODAU ETHOLEDIG 2019/20

Nododd y pwyllgor yr arolwg drafft i aelodau, a atodwyd i'r adroddiad 
a ddosbarthwyd, y disgwylir y byddai'n cael ei gwblhau'n gynnar yn 
2020. Nododd yr aelodau y byddai'r arolwg wedi'i gwblhau ar sail 1 i 1 
gyda swyddogion o'r Gwasanaethau Democrataidd. 

Yn ogystal â'r cwestiynau a gynhwysir yn y ddogfen ddrafft, 
gofynnodd yr aelodau a ellid ychwanegu cwestiynau ynghylch y 
canlynol:

 Problemau a brofir gan yr aelodau mewn perthynas ag 
anableddau:

 Amserau cwrdd:
 Unrhyw broblemau cydraddoldeb:
 Rhagor o gwestiynau penodol ynghylch defnydd yr aelodau o 

TG:
 Defnyddioldeb yr arolwg yn ôl yr aelodau. 

Yn dilyn y trafodaethau uchod:

PENDERFYNWYD:   1. Yn dilyn ychwanegu'r cwestiynau mewn 
perthynas â'r uchod, yr eir ati i dreialu'r arolwg;  

                     
                          2.  Y bydd Cadeirydd y Gweithgor Anabledd yn 

ysgrifennu at yr holl aelodau yn annog y rheini â 
phroblemau anabledd i drafod y fath anableddau, 
ac a ydynt yn effeithio ar gyfranogiad yr aelodau 
ym musnes y cyngor, â Phennaeth y 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd, er mwyn darparu 

Tudalen4



- 3 -

Dydd Iau, 14 Tachwedd 2019

cymorth iddynt gyflawni eu dyletswyddau fel 
cynghorwyr.

4. DIWEDDARIAD AR Y GRŴP ARCHWILIO ANABLEDD

Diweddarwyd yr aelodau ar waith y Grŵp Archwilio Anabledd. 
Nodwyd y byddai'r grŵp yn cwrdd nesaf â swyddogion o'r adran 
stadau a'r gweithgor llety i drafod y cynigion a gyflwynwyd gan 
Proudlock Associates mewn perthynas â'r adeilad dinesig yng 
Nghastell-nedd a Phort Talbot. Yna, byddai adroddiad yn cael ei 
gyflwyno i'r pwyllgor hwn i'w ystyried.

PENDERFYNWYD y byddai'r adroddiad yn cael ei nodi.

5. DIWEDDARIAD YN DILYN CYFARFOD Â PHANEL ANNIBYNNOL 
CYMRU AR GYDNABYDDIAETH ARIANNOL AR 22 HYDREF 2019 
AR ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL DRAFFT PANEL ANNIBYNNOL 
CYMRU AR GYDNABYDDIAETH ARIANNOL, CHWEFROR 2020

Derbyniodd yr aelodau gopi o adroddiad drafft Panel Annibynnol 
Cymru ar Gydnabyddiaeth Ariannol (IRPW) fel atodiad i'r adroddiad a 
ddosbarthwyd. Roedd hwn yn nodi ei gynigion ar gyfer rhoi 
cydnabyddiaeth ariannol i aelodau Prif Gynghorau yng Nghymru ar 
gyfer 2020/21.  

Tynnwyd sylw'r aelodau at y cynnig i gynyddu lwfans sylfaenol 
aelodau £350 y flwyddyn yn effeithiol o'r flwyddyn ariannol newydd.  
Nododd y pwyllgor fod cyfradd eu cydnabyddiaeth ariannol yn llai na'r 
meincnod. Cytunodd y pwyllgor y dylai unrhyw gynnydd ddechrau yn 
y flwyddyn ddinesig newydd.  

Mewn perthynas â darparu digon o gymorth i aelodau, roedd yr ystod 
o gefnogaeth sydd eisoes ar gael wedi'i nodi yn yr adroddiad ac fe'i 
nodwyd.  

Nododd y pwyllgor fod yr IRPW wedi gofyn am hyrwyddo lwfans 
gofalwr ymhellach er mwyn annog gofalwyr i wneud cais amdano.

Ceisiwyd eglurhad ynghylch yr hyn yr oedd yr IRPW yn gofyn 
amdano o ran ffonau.  Holodd aelodau a oedd posibilrwydd 
trosglwyddo'r cardiau sim o'r i-pads i ffonau symudol.  Cytunwyd y 
byddai hyn yn cael ei drafod ymhellach, a’i fwydo i'r Grŵp Cyfeirio TG 
er mwyn iddynt ei ystyried.

Tudalen5



- 4 -

Dydd Iau, 14 Tachwedd 2019

PENDERFYNWYD: Y byddai Pennaeth y   Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd yn ymateb i 

ymgynghoriad yr IRPW gan nodi bod y cynnydd yn 
y lwfans sylfaenol yn ymddangos yn dderbyniol ond 
y dylai fod yn berthnasol o'r flwyddyn ddinesig 
newydd ac nid y flwyddyn ariannol newydd.  Y 
byddai adroddiad drafft yr IRPW yn cael ei 
ddosbarthu i'r holl aelodau, gyda nodyn i'w hatgoffa 
y gall aelodau ymateb yn unigol os ydynt yn 
dymuno gwneud hynny.

6. BLAENRAGLEN WAITH 2019-20

PENDERFYNWYD:  Y dylid nodi'r Blaenraglen Waith ac ychwanegu'r 
Grŵp Archwilio Anabledd ac Arolwg yr Aelodau at y 
daflen gynllunio ar gyfer 3 Mawrth.

CADEIRYDD

Tudalen6



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE

3 March 2020

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Digital Officer

Matter for Decision

Wards Affected: All wards

Annual Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales 
and Draft Supplementary Report of the Independent Remuneration 
Panel for Wales

Purpose of the Report

1. To advise Members of the Democratic Services Committee of the 
content of the final Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel 
for Wales for the civic year 2020/2021.

The link to the Annual Report is     Independent Remuneration Panel for 
Wales: annual report 2020 to 2021 

2. To advise Members of the Democratic Services Committee of a 
consultation exercise initiated by the IRPW on draft supplementary 
guidance which proposes a set of principles that the Panel 
propose should be adopted by all relevant authorities to increase 
the take up of financial support for Members who have care 
responsibilities or personal needs.

Background

The Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales (IRPW) exercises 
powers set out in various legislation and can also make 
recommendations. It has the power to set the level of remuneration 

Tudalen7

Eitem yr Agenda3

https://gov.wales/independent-remuneration-panel-wales-annual-report-2020-2021
https://gov.wales/independent-remuneration-panel-wales-annual-report-2020-2021


payable to elected members and co-opted members of local authorities. 
It has also been given a general power to review councils’ pay policy 
statements as far as they relate to heads of paid service, extended on a 
temporary basis to chief officers of principal authorities.

Annual Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales

Each year, and before making its final determinations for the next civic 
year, the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales publishes a draft 
report and invites comments on its draft proposals. The proposals 
proposed for the civic year 2020-21 were considered by this Committee 
on 14 November 2019 and the following comments were forwarded to 
the IRPW:

“Whilst Committee supported the increase to the basic allowance, 
Members felt that the implementation of the changes should be the new 
Civic Year and not the Financial Year as proposed in the report.

The Council will continue to promote the use of the Carers’ Allowance, 
as suggested in the report, and will shortly be making representations to 
HMRC in relation to the taxation of the allowance.

In addition, Council will endeavour to schedule a meeting where you will 
be able to meet with representatives of the County Borough Council 
along with representatives of the Community and Town Councils within 
our area.”

The IRPW has now published its final proposals for the civic year 2020-
21 and Members are asked to note that proposals are unchanged from 
those contained in the draft report.

Summary of changes to be implemented in 2020/2021

1. Salaries

The changes that will affect the existing arrangements in this Council are 
summarised in the table overleaf: 

Tudalen8



Element of 
Remunerations

2019/20 2020/21 Change (% 
change)

Basic Salary £13,868 £14,218
+£350

Leader £49,100 £49,450 +£350 
Deputy Leader £34,600 £34,950 +£350 
Executive 
Members

£30,100 £30,450 +£350 

Chairs of 
Committee

£22,568 £22,918 +£350

Leader of 
largest 
opposition 
Group

£22,568 £22,918 +£350 

Leader of other 
political Group

£17,568 £17,918 +£350

Civic Head £22,568 £22,918 +£350
Deputy Civic 
Head

£17,568 £17,918 +£350

Notes:

1. Increases to the senior salaries of £350 are inclusive of the 
increase proposed to the basic salary of £350

2. The limits on the number of senior salaries available to the Council 
remain unchanged as does the threshold for other opposition 
group leaders to qualify for the other political group leader salary.

2. Other matters

The Panel has re-emphasised the need for Democratic Services 
Committees to ensure that all elected members are given the support 
necessary for them to fulfil their duties effectively.

AS advised on 14 November 2019, work undertaken to date by the 
Committee is summarised below for reference:

 The Democratic Services Committee in Neath Port Talbot is in 
the process of undertaking the Members Annual Survey;

Tudalen9



 The Democratic Services Committee in Neath Port Talbot has 
reviewed the arrangements for Member Annual Reports and 
Member Annual Development Reviews and agreed actions in 
relation to both of these matters;

 The Member ICT Scheme was reviewed and amended at the 
end of the last administration. The Democratic Services 
Committee has set up a Member IT Reference Group to keep 
Member ICT arrangements under review;

 The Democratic Services Committee in Neath Port Talbot 
continues to assess Members’ facilities to ensure they are fit for 
purpose;  

 Members are reminded at regular intervals about the carer 
provisions in a general sense, but also when circumstances 
change, individual Members are approached by the Head of 
Democratic Services to ensure they consider taking up the 
provisions available; and

 A Task and Finish Group has been established to take forward 
the webcasting of council meetings and the development of a 
Public Participation Strategy.

The IRPW ask that the following arrangements be promoted to all
elected members. Please also note that they propose to issue 
supplementary guidance also in relation to carers’ allowances which is 
dealt with later in this report:

 The Panel has determined that, through the Democratic Services 
Committees, authorities should ensure all voting co-opted 
members are given as much support as is necessary for them to 
fulfil their duties effectively.

As the Democratic Services Committee has not yet considered the 
support needs of co-opted Members, it is suggested that this be 
included in the Committee’s Forward Work Programme for 2020-
21.

Tudalen10



Draft Supplementary Report of the Independent Remuneration 
Panel for Wales

The IRPW has issued draft guidance that it proposes to issue as a 
supplementary report on the “Principles Relating to the Reimbursement 
to Costs of Care” in an effort to promote the take up of the care element 
of the financial support available. Appendix 1 provides a copy of the 
table extracted from the draft guidance, together with this council’s 
current position on the actions IRPW propose we should take: 

Financial Impact

The draft budget proposals for the Council for 2020/21 includes as uplift 
to cover the additional costs created by the £350 increase in the basic 
salary for Members.

Equality Impact Assessment

The draft supplementary guidance would have a beneficial impact on 
those Members who have caring responsibilities and may assist in 
attracting people from diverse backgrounds to stand for election as 
councillors.

Workforce Impacts

There are no workforce impacts identified in relation to the proposed 
changes.

Risk Management

Any increase to Member remuneration has the potential to attract public 
criticism at a time of severe and enduring austerity. The Panel 
acknowledge this in making its proposals but points to the workloads 
and responsibilities being borne by elected Members as justification for 
the proposed changes. Furthermore, the Panel provides details of how 
councillor remuneration is continuing to diverge from the benchmark 
rate. 

Tudalen11



Legal Powers

The Panel are exercising powers set out in Part 8 of the Local 
Government (Wales) Measure 2011, as amended by the Local 
Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013 and the Local Government 
(Wales) Act 2015.

Consultation

All Members were sent a copy of the draft Report. I wrote, on behalf of 
the Chair and Committee to the IRPW, summarising Members’ views on 
the draft proposals as outlined above.  

Recommendation

1. Members of the Democratic Services Committee are invited to 
note the contents of the final Annual Report issued by the 
Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales.

2. Members are asked to consider the draft supplementary guidance 
on the costs of care that the Panel are proposing to make and offer 
views on those proposals. 

3. Members ask the Head of Democratic Services to provide a formal 
response to the draft supplementary guidance based on the 
discussion at the meeting.
 

Appendices

Appendix 1 –Draft Supplementary Guidance – Costs of Care

Officer Contact:

Mrs Karen Jones, Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Digital Officer: 
Tel:01639 763284 or e-mail: k.jones3@npt.gov.uk

Mrs Caryn Furlow-Harris, Strategic Manager, Policy and Democratic 
Services, Tel: 01639 763242 or e-mail: c.furlow@npt.gov.uk

Tudalen12

tel:01639
mailto:k.jones3@npt.gov.uk


Tudalen13



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



 

To:  

Leaders and Chief Executives of County and County Borough Councils  

Chairs and Chief Executives of National Park Authorities  

Chairs and Clerks of Fire and Rescue Authorities  

Chair and Chief Executive of One Voice Wales  

Leader and Chief Executive of Welsh Local Government Association  

Head of Democratic/Members Services of County and County  

Borough Councils, National Park Authorities and Fire and Rescue Authorities  

Clerks to Community & Town Councils 

 

19 February 2020 

 

Dear Colleague 

Independent Remuneration for Wales – Annual Report 2020/2021 

Attached is the finalised Annual Report in respect of 2020/2021. My thanks to 

the individuals and organisations who responded to the draft Report issued in 

September last year. The Panel has considered the views and comments that 

were expressed and have been taken in to account in reaching the conclusions 

reflected in the Report. 

The Panel has confirmed the increases in the basic salary for elected members 

of principal councils, with consequential increases for members of National 

Park and Fire and Rescue Authorities. There is no additional increase proposed 

for senior salary holders but they will receive the addition to the basic salary 

element. There are no other substantive changes to the draft Report.  

 

 

Tudalen15



Responses to the draft raised issues in respect of the date of the 

implementation of the Panel’s determinations and the taxation of some of the 

payments. I have set out the Panel’s position on these matters in the Foreword 

to the Report. 

  

Yours sincerely 

 

John Bader 
Chair 
 

 

 

 

Tudalen16



Appendix 1

Draft Supplementary Guidance – Costs of Care

The Minimum Authorities should do How this could be done Current practice/comments

1  Be clear
   who it is
   for

1.1 Members with primary caring
      responsibilities for a child or adult        
      and or personal support needs     
      where these are not covered by  
      statutory or other provision.
 
1.2 For personal support. This might
      also include a short term or  
      recent condition not covered by  
      the Equality Act 2010, access to 
      work, Personal Payments, 
      insurance or other provision. 

Democratic Services
Committees and or Staff
to review members’
needs annually and when
circumstances change

The IRPW should direct any guidance to 
democratic services committees or the heads 
of democratic services. It is not appropriate for 
directions to be given by the IRPW to 
democratic services staff as they do not have 
the power to issue such instructions.

In terms of responding to Members’ needs, all 
councillors are regularly reminded about the 
carers allowances. Additionally, when the 
circumstances of individual members change, 
members are approached by the Head of 
Democratic Services to encourage them to take 
up the carers allowances.

2 Raise
  Awareness

2.1 Ensure potential candidates,
     candidates and current members 
     are aware that RoCoC is 
     available to them should their
      current or future circumstances 
      require. 

Ensure clear and easily
found information is
available on website and
in election and
appointment materials, at
Shadowing and at
induction and in the
members’ “handbook”.
Signpost to IRPW
Payments to Councillors
leaflets

The Council promoted the IRPW arrangements 
on the Internet in the run up to the 2017 local 
government elections as part of the on-
boarding arrangements that were agreed.

The remuneration arrangement were also then 
covered in more detail during the induction of 
newly elected members.

The Remuneration Scheme is updated annually 
in line with IRPW determinations and this is 

T
udalen17



sent to all councillors. We also encourage 
councillors to participate in IRPW consultations.

3 Promote a 
   Positive
   Culture

3.1 Ensure all members understand 
     the reason for RoCoC and 
      support and encourage others to 
     claim where needed.

Encouragement within
and across all parties of
Relevant Authorities to
support members to
claim.
Agree not to advertise or
make public individual
decisions not to claim.

See above

Additionally, Council has decided as a matter of 
policy not to publish details of individual 
members minded to claim the carers 
allowances.

4 Set out 
   the
   approved
   duties for
   which
   RoCoC
   can be
   claimed

4.1 Meetings – formal (those called
      by the Authority) and those  
      necessary to members’ work (to
       deal with constituency but not 
        party issues) and personal   
        development (training, and 
        appraisals.)

 4.2 Travel – in connection with  
       meetings.

4.3 Preparation – reading and
      administration are part of a 
      member’s role. Some meetings 
      and committees require large 
      amounts of reading, analysis or 
      drafting before or after a meeting.

4.4 Senior salary holders with 
      additional duties may have 
      higher costs.

Approved duties are
usually a matter of fact.
Interpretation of the
IRPW Regulations are
set out in the Annual
Report.
“Any other duty approved
by the authority, or any
duty of class so
approved, undertaken for
the purpose of, or in
connection with, the
discharge of the functions
of the authority or any of
its committees.”

The Council’s Remuneration Scheme does not 
deviate from the IRPW arrangements.

There have been compliance audits of our 
Scheme.

T
udalen18



5 Be flexible
   about the
   types of
   care that
   can be
   claimed

5.1 Members should not be “out of
      pocket”

5.2 Models of care and needs vary

5.3 Members may use a combination 
      of several care options

5.4 Patterns of care may alter over 
      the civic and academic year

5.5 Not all care is based on hourly (or
      part hourly) rates

5.6 Where a whole session must be 
      paid for, this must be reimbursed 
      even where the care need is only 
      for part of a session

5.7 Members may need to:
5.7.1 book and pay for sessions in
         advance
5.7.2 commit to a block contract: 
         week, month or term
5.7.3 pay for sessions cancelled at 
         short notice

5.8 Where care need straddles two
     sessions both should be 
      reimbursed

Should Members wish to claim carers 
allowance they simply have to provide 
receipts to evidence the expenditure up 
to the maximum allowance provided for 
in the IRPW framework.

We have not imposed any onerous 
conditions on claiming the allowance. 

We try to schedule a lighter programme 
of meetings during school holidays at the 
request of Council and have a full recess 
every August. This is to accommodate 
Members who have caring 
responsibilities for children of school 
age.

The suggestion about advance payment 
will need to be carefully worked through 
to ensure that any expenditure is 
appropriate balanced against other 
spending pressures that authorities are 
experiencing. 

T
udalen19



6 Have a
   simple
   claim
  process

6.1 Members should know how to 
      claim.

6.2 The claim process should be 
      clear, proportionate and auditable 

Check claim at members’
appraisals and regular
review
Flexibility to accept
paperless invoices
On line form
Same or similar form to
travel costs claim

See above.

7 Comply
   with IRPW
  Publication
   rules

7.1 The IRPW Framework states:
       “In respect of the publication of 
       the reimbursement of the costs 
       of care, the Panel has decided 
       that relevant authorities should 
       only publish the total amount 
       reimbursed during the year. It is 
       a matter for each authority to 
       determine its response to any 
       Freedom of Information requests 
       it receives. However, it is not
       intended that details of individual 
       claims should be disclosed.”

See above

T
udalen20



 

To:  

Leaders and Chief Executives of County and County Borough Councils  
Chairs and Chief Executives of National Park Authorities  
Chairs and Clerks of Fire and Rescue Authorities  
Chair and Chief Executive of One Voice Wales  
Leader and Chief Executive of Welsh Local Government Association  
Head of Democratic/Members Services of County and County  
Borough Councils, National Park Authorities and Fire and Rescue Authorities  
Clerks to Community & Town Councils 

 

13 February 2020 

Dear Colleagues 

Draft Supplementary Report – Principles relating to the reimbursement of 

Costs of Care 

For several years, the Panel has endeavoured to find ways to increase the take up of 
the financial support for members of councils, National Park Authorities and Fire and 
Rescue Authorities who have care responsibilities or personal needs. We believe 
that this provision is an important factor to increase and sustain diversity of 
membership of local authorities. 
 
We keep this provision under constant review and welcome comments and 
suggestions about ways in which the take up of this financial support can be 
increased.  
 
This draft Supplementary Report is a stage in this continuing review process. It 
proposes a set of principles that should be adopted by all relevant authorities. It is a 
consultation document and the Panel would appreciate comments prior to the 
publication of the final Report. The consultation will run for eight weeks and 
responses should be submitted by the 9 April 2020. 
 
 
Yours sincerely, 

 
John Bader  
Chair 

Tudalen21



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



February 2020

    © Crown copyright 2020      WG40024

Mae’r ddogfen yma hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg.
This document is also available in Welsh. 

Independent Remuneration 
Panel for Wales

Draft Supplementary Report

The Principles relating to the Reimbursement 
of Costs of Care

Tudalen23



 
1 

Draft Supplementary Report 
 
The Principles in respect of the Reimbursement of Costs of Care (RoCoC)  
 
Introduction 
 
The Panel’s core principles have been a fundamental feature of its work since it was 
established and are contained in each Annual Report. These include:  
 
Remuneration 
1.3 The Framework provides for payment to members of relevant authorities who 

carry a responsibility for serving their communities. The level of payment should 
not act as a barrier to taking up or continuing in post. There should be no 
requirement that resources necessary to enable the discharge of duties are 
funded from the payment. The Framework provides additional payments for 
those who are given greater levels of responsibility. 
 

Diversity 
1.4 Democracy is strengthened when the membership of relevant authorities 

adequately reflects the demographic and cultural make-up of the communities 
such authorities serve. The Panel will always take in to account the contribution 
its Framework can make in encouraging the participation of those who are 
significantly under-represented at local authority level. 

 
The provision of financial support for members with care responsibilities or 
personal needs is an important factor in improving and sustaining the diversity of 
membership. It is essential that there is clarity in the availability of and the access 
to this support. We therefore propose to supplement our core principles with 
additions specifically relating to the costs of care. This draft Supplementary Report 
sets out our proposals for consultation. 
 
The purpose is: 
To enable all members and co-opted members of relevant authorities to carry out 

their duties effectively  

The Relevant Authorities are: 
22 Local Authorities, 735 Town and Community Councils, 3 National Park and 3 Fire 

and Rescue Authorities 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen24



 
2 

The Minimum Authorities should do How this could be done 

1 Be clear 
who it is 
for 

1.1 Members with primary caring 
responsibilities for a child or adult and 
or personal support needs where 
these are not covered by statutory or 
other provision.  

1.2 For personal support. This might also 
include a short term or recent 
condition not covered by the Equality 
Act 2010, access to work, Personal 
Payments, insurance or other 
provision. 

Democratic Services 
Committees and or Staff 
to review members’ 
needs annually and when 
circumstances change  

2 Raise 
Awareness 

2.1 Ensure potential candidates, 
candidates and current members are 
aware that RoCoC is available to 
them should their current or future 
circumstances require.  

 
 

Ensure clear and easily 
found information is 
available on website and 
in election and 
appointment materials, at 
Shadowing and at 
induction and in the 
members’ “handbook”. 
Signpost to IRPW 
Payments to Councillors 
leaflets. 

3 Promote a 
Positive 
Culture 

3.1 Ensure all members understand the 
reason for RoCoC and support and 
encourage others to claim where 
needed. 

 

Encouragement within 
and across all parties of 
Relevant Authorities to 
support members to 
claim.  
Agree not to advertise or 
make public individual 
decisions not to claim. 

4 Set out the 
approved 
duties for 
which 
RoCoC 
can be 
claimed 

 

4.1 Meetings – formal (those called by 
the Authority) and those necessary to 
members’ work (to deal with 
constituency but not party issues) 
and personal development (training, 
and appraisals.) 

4.2 Travel – in connection with meetings.  

4.3 Preparation – reading and 
administration are part of a member’s 
role.  Some meetings and 
committees require large amounts of 
reading, analysis or drafting before or 
after a meeting. 

4.4 Senior salary holders with additional 
duties may have higher costs. 

Approved duties are 
usually a matter of fact. 
Interpretation of the 
IRPW Regulations are 
set out in the Annual 
Report.  
 
“Any other duty approved 
by the authority, or any 
duty of class so 
approved, undertaken for 
the purpose of, or in 
connection with, the 
discharge of the functions 
of the authority or any of 
its committees.” 

Tudalen25

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-02/community-and-town-councils-payments-to-councillors_0.pdf


 
3 

5 Be flexible 
about the 
types of 
care that 
can be 
claimed 

5.1 Members should not be “out of 
pocket” 

5.2 Models of care and needs vary   

5.3 Members may use a combination of 
several care options 

5.4 Patterns of care may alter over the 
civic and academic year  

5.5 Not all care is based on hourly (or 
part hourly) rates 

5.6 Where a whole session must be paid 
for, this must be reimbursed even 
where the care need is only for part 
of a session  

5.7 Members may need to: 

5.7.1 book and pay for sessions in 
advance 

5.7.2 commit to a block contract: week, 
month or term 

5.7.3 pay for sessions cancelled at short 
notice 

5.8 Where care need straddles two 
sessions both should be reimbursed 

 

6 Have a 
simple 
claim 
process 

6.1 Members should know how to claim. 

6.2 The claim process should be clear, 
proportionate and auditable. 

Check claim at members’ 
appraisals and regular 
review 
Flexibility to accept 
paperless invoices 
On line form 
Same or similar form to 
travel costs claim 

7 Comply 
with IRPW 
Publication 
rules 

7.1 The IRPW Framework states:   

 

“In respect of the publication of the 
reimbursement of the costs of care, the 
Panel has decided that relevant authorities 
should only publish the total amount 
reimbursed during the year. It is a matter 
for each authority to determine its 
response to any Freedom of Information 
requests it receives. However, it is not 
intended that details of individual claims 
should be disclosed.” 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen26



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Democratic Services Committee

3rd March 2020

Report of the Chair of the Disability Audit Working Group – 
Cllr. Sandra Miller

Matter for Decision

Wards Affected: All Wards

Disability Audit Working Group

Purpose of the Report:

To provide the Democratic Services Committee with the findings of 
the recent Working Group on the Disability Audit of Neath and Port 
Talbot Civic Centres. 

Executive Summary:

This report highlights the work of the Group undertaken over a period 
of several months. The Group consisted of a small number of 
Members and considered evidence and insights from internal Council 
departments as well as external specialists, Proudlock Associates.

Tudalen27

Eitem yr Agenda4



Background:

Democratic Services Committee Members requested that 
arrangements be made for a disability audit to take place in both 
Neath and Port Talbot Civic Centres in order to remove any barriers 
for Members to access their workplace and facilities. 

The Facilities Management team carried out an accessibility survey 
and discovered that a number of areas were identified as needing 
improvement, in the Civic Centres.

Following this the Democratic Services Committee formed a Working 
Group to carry out a disability audit of Members’ facilities at Neath 
and Port Talbot Civic Centres.

Financial Impacts: 

There are financial impacts associated with the recommendations set 
out in this report. However, the Group consulted officers in arriving at 
the final recommendations and they have been ranked according to 
what is considered important and affordable in the short term as well; 
as those recommendations that would be progressed in the longer 
term as part of a more significant programme of works

Integrated Impact Assessment:

This work was specifically commissioned to address the needs of 
disabled people, specifically elected members, to ensure that people 
with disabilities can participate in the business of the Council. 

Valleys Communities Impacts: 

This report focuses on the needs of people with disabilities and there 
are no direct impacts for valleys communities.

Tudalen28



Workforce Impacts:

There are no direct workforce impacts associated with this report 
however, changes introduced to meet the needs of disabled 
Members will also benefit staff with disabilities and also the wider 
public.

Legal Impacts:

The work has specifically considered how well existing arrangements 
meet duties set out in the Equality Act 2010 and relevant health and 
safety and building regulations.

Risk Management Impacts: 

There is a risk that without implementing the recommendations, the 
needs of elected members with disabilities will not be met, impairing 
their ability to fully participate in the business of the Council.

Consultation:

There is no requirement for external consultation on this item. 

Recommendations: 

That the Democratic Services Committee considers the report 
developed by the Task and Finish Group and commends the 
recommendations included in the report (appendix one) to the 
Cabinet. 

Reasons for Proposed Decision: 

To make reasonable adjustments to Neath and Port Talbot Civic 
Centres in order to improve disabled access for Members and assist 
the Council in meeting its equality duties.

Tudalen29



Implementation of Decision:

The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in 
period

Appendices: 

Appendix one – Report of the Working Group

Officer Contact:

Chloe Plowman, Democratic Services Officer
Email: c.plowman@npt.gov.uk Tel: 01639 763301

Tudalen30



1

A Report of the Democratic Services 
Committee Task and Finish Group:

Disability Audit of Neath and 
Port Talbot Civic Centres 

March 2020
Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council

Tudalen31



2

CONTENTS

CHAIRS FORWARD 3

BACKGROUND 4

APPROACH 6

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE 

DISABILITY AUDIT

13

ADDITIONAL RECOMMENDATIONS 26

TABLES OF EVIDENCE 27

Tudalen32



3

CHAIR’S FOREWORD

When we embarked on this audit this volunteer group was eager to 
ensure our buildings were fit for purpose to accommodate the 
challenges that face our Members and be in compliance with 
supporting our Staff maintain their working lives as best as they 
can.

I would like to thank Proudlock Associates for their help in shaping 
our work, giving us a structured programme that will enable us to 
undertake the priorities needed going forward. 

Our Officers have worked with us to confirm this final document. 
The recommendations outlined in this report will give this Council a 
platform of improvements that will also benefit both public and 
employees and to help them to remove any barriers they face 
daily.

Chair of the Disability Audit Working Group 
Councillor Sandra Miller

Tudalen33



4

BACKGROUND 

The Equality Act became law in October, 2010. It replaced 

previous legislation (such as the Disability Discrimination Act 1995) 

and ensured consistency in what employers and employees 

needed to do to make their workplaces a fair environment and 

comply with the law. All buildings constructed after 1994 must 

comply with Approved Document M of the Building Regulations – 

Access to and use of buildings. Part M sets out minimum 

requirements to ensure that a broad range of people are able to 

access and use facilities within buildings.

All buildings occupied by Neath Port Talbot County Borough 

Council are routinely surveyed, to assess their suitability for 

disabled users to access facilities and services, and to identify any 

reasonable adjustments to be undertaken. The accessibility survey 

identifies where the buildings fail to comply with the relevant 

legislation, ascertains what work is required to remove physical 

barriers and indicative costs to undertake the work.

As part of Members discussions during a meeting of the 

Democratic Services Committee on 27 July 2017, a request was 

made to undertake a survey to establish if there were any 

reasonable adjustments that should be considered to improve 

disabled access for Members, staff and the general public within 

civic buildings.

Work to undertake the survey was conducted by the Facilities

Tudalen34



5

Management team during September 2017. Members were 

presented with the findings of the survey in a meeting on 19 

October 2017. It was brought to attention that Neath Civic Centre, 

which was built in 2005, and the Quays completed in 2009, both 

comply with Part M of the Building Regulations and were designed 

to be fully accessible. With regard to Port Talbot Civic Centre, 

which was constructed in 1987, prior to the introduction of any 

significant legislation to improve access for disabled people, a 

number of areas were identified as needing improvement. It was 

resolved that arrangements be made for a disability audit to take 

place in both Neath and Port Talbot Civic Centres, and a report to 

be prepared identifying the issues for consideration.

Officers made progress in relation to setting up a disability audit 

and in a meeting of the Democratic Services Committee on 5th 

September 2018, they provided Members with an update. It was 

agreed that a Task and Finish Group be set up to carry out a 

disability audit of Members’ facilities at Neath and Port Talbot Civic 

Centres with support from Shaw Trust, in order to enable Members 

to carry out their role, and to assist in facilitating the democratic 

processes of the Council. Carrying out the disability audit would 

remove barriers for Members to access their workplace and 

facilities, and assist the Council to meet its equality duties. 

Tudalen35



6

APPROACH

The following Elected Members volunteered to sit on the Group: 

 Cllr S Miller (Chairperson)

 Cllr A Woolcock

 Cllr S ap Dafydd

 Cllr O Davies

 Cllr W Griffiths 

 Cllr S Hunt

 Cllr S Jones

 Cllr R Mizen 

 Cllr S Paddison

 Cllr S Penry

 Cllr L Purcell

 Cllr J Warman

 Cllr D Whitelock

 Cllr C Williams 

There was originally a delay with setting up the Task and Finish 

Group due to Shaw Trust being unable to provide support initially; 

however the correct support was enlisted with Proudlock 

Associates (sub-contractors for Shaw Trust). The first meeting of 

the Group took place on 14th March 2019.

The First Meeting
Members received the access auditing proposals produced by 

Proudlock Associates, which contained two options. Following 

discussion, the Group agreed to proceed with option one as they 

Tudalen36



7

felt it best reflected the instruction given by the Democratic 

Services Committee; opposed to option two which was detailed to 

be a full compliance audit, usually dealt with by the Council's 

Facilities Management section. 

The segment below was extracted from the access auditing 

proposal from Proudlock Associates and details the option that 

was chosen by the Group:

Option 1 – Light touch audit and walk-through followed by notes 

sent afterwards. 

This involves an initial inspection of the building by the auditor in 

an approach to identify the considerations that should be made 

and to formulate some initial recommendations. Taking notes and 

measurements for around 2 hours in each building, the auditor is 

then accompanied immediately afterwards by members / staff / 

building management in a walk-through of the building in order for 

the auditor to explain the recommendations being considered by 

the auditor, to give reasons and discuss any options / preferences. 

We envisage this will take around 90 mins more per building. The 

visit would be followed by a summary report of the 

recommendations including giving the necessary guidance, rather 

than a full Audit Report. The Summary report would be loosely 

based on the same headings as that for the main proposal above, 

and comments may also be made on the internal surfaces, 

signage, way finding, lighting, acoustics, means of escape and 

building management but only where necessary in this light-touch 

approach to the work.

Tudalen37



8

The Group emphasised the importance of covering means of 

escape from the civic buildings during the audit, in particular 

Members with disabilities, and queried how the audit would be 

funded. Officers clarified that the cost of the audit would be 

accommodated within the existing budget for Member 

Development. 

The Disability Audit
Neath Port Talbot Council commissioned Proudlock Associates to 

provide inclusive design and access auditing services for Elected 

Member areas within the two main buildings:

 Neath Civic Centre

 Port Talbot Civic Centre

The Group had decided that the following Members would attend 

the walk-through audit with Proudlock Associates, and an Officer 

from Democratic Services:

 Cllr S Miller

 Cllr S ap Dafydd

 Cllr O Davies

 Cllr L Purcell 

A ‘light touch’ audit and a walk-through of the premises was 

agreed and carried out on 15 April 2019. Proudlock Associates 

started their audit at Port Talbot Civic Centre in the morning, 

before moving onto Neath Civic Centre in the afternoon. 

The work commissioned was to make an initial inspection of the 

buildings in an approach to identify the considerations that should 

Tudalen38



9

be made and to formulate some initial recommendations. 

Proudlock Associates began their audit in each building by walking 

through independently to take notes and measurements. They 

were then accompanied immediately afterwards by the nominated 

Members and Democratic Services Officers in a walk-through of 

the building, where the auditor explained the recommendations 

being considered, gave reasons for the recommendations and 

provided opportunity to discuss any options and/or preferences. 

Following the audit, Proudlock Associates provided a report on the 

inclusive design and access audit notes, which included 

recommendations for both Civic Centres.

Considering the Report
The Group reconvened on 9 September 2019 and received the 

final report of the disability audit completed by Proudlock 

Associates. It was noted that the report was divided into two 

sections, Neath Civic Centre and Port Talbot Civic Centre, and 

included recommendations and priorities for each building.

It was queried whether the council would be required to achieve all 

of the recommendations included in the report or whether the 

group would be able to prioritise a select few. Members were 

informed, that as a public body, the council would be compelled to 

comply with the Equality Act (2010) and the Health and Safety at 

Work Act, to abide by legislation and to prevent incurred charges. 

It was stated that reasonable adjustment must be considered for 

both employees and the public.

Tudalen39



10

It was decided that the best way forward would be to organise two 

workshops, one to discuss Neath Civic Centre and the other to 

discuss Port Talbot Civic Centre; and use these workshops to 

prioritise and organise the recommendations detailed in the audit 

report, to help identify which recommendations are definitely 

achievable, possibly achievable and not achievable.

The following suggestions were made in relation to the process of 

organising and prioritising recommendations:

 Refer particular recommendations of a high cost and would 

require a lot of resources to officers so that they could be 

considered for future refurbishments plans.

  Create a list including the recommendations that were not 

achievable at the time, to evidence that they were 

considered by the Group.

Following the workshops, it was decided that Democratic Services 

Officers would arrange an additional meeting with the appropriate 

officers to obtain their feedback on the work completed by the 

Group. It was emphasised the Officers role will be key in deciding 

cost effective solutions and quick fixes that will significantly make 

an improvement to the civic centres.

The Workshops
The workshops took place on the following dates:

 23 September 2019 – Neath Civic Centre

 10 October 2019 – Port Talbot Civic Centre

Tudalen40



11

Democratic Services Officers produced a table for both Civic 

Centres to utilise in the workshops in order to capture the Groups 

own comments, priorities and actions against each of the 

recommended actions provided by the auditors. The tables also 

contained the observations and comments, priorities and 

estimated costs which were included in the auditor’s report.

The tables from both workshops can be found under the ‘tables of 

evidence’ section, detailed in this report. 

Following both workshops, Democratic Services Officers circulated 

the tables to Simon Brennan and Richard Jenkins in order for them 

to be able to provide their response to the recommendations.

Meeting with Officers 
The Group invited Officers Simon Brennan (Head Of Property And 

Regeneration) and Richard Jenkins (Building Premises Manager) 

to attend a meeting on 20 January 2020, in order to obtain their 

professional views on the recommendations, as well as provide 

information on any pre-planned maintenance or works and/or 

improvements which would either fully or in-part address the 

recommendations. Members also welcomed Officers views on the 

recommendations that could not be implemented within a 

reasonable time and/or cost.

Councillor Annette Wingrave, Cabinet Member for Regeneration 

and Sustainable Development, was also invited to attend as it was 

identified there was a link between both areas of work.

Tudalen41



12

Simon Brennan and Richard Jenkins presented their comments in 

the format of a table, as a response to each recommendation 

provided by Proudlock Associates. The comments on both Civic 

Centres, as well as the Groups response to the comments, can be 

found under the ‘tables of evidence’ section, detailed in this report.

During the meeting, Members had opportunity to raise any 

questions and/or queries in relation to the comments provided by 

Officers, before agreeing the final recommendations to take to 

Democratic Services Committee.  

Tudalen42



13

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE DISABILITY AUDIT

Neath Civic Centre

1. There are Blue Badge bays outside and in the adjacent car park, 
which are all correctly marked out. The direct route from the car park 
involves negotiating doors which include the outer door to the car 
park building, which is very heavy and has a handle that is difficult to 
grip.

Officer’s comments: The Multi Storey car park is not a facilities run building 
but there are automatic doors on the main entrance / exit.

Discussion in meeting: There have been occasions when the automatic 
doors do not open. Sliding automatic doors seem to work more efficiently; 
this could be taken into consideration for the future. The lift in the Multi 
Storey car park is sometimes out of order, this is often due to vandalism 
which prevents the lifts from working. The issue is always reported, 
however it takes time for the organisation who completes the repairs to 
obtain the parts needed and complete the repairs.

Recommendation: No current action, however take on board the 
comments made regarding using sliding automatic doors for any 
future refurbishment.

2. The approach to the building from the car park has some uneven 
slabs and edges that need repair, or they could cause an accident by 
trapping a wheelchair castor or a heel. The surface is also reportedly 
very slippery when wet.

Officer’s comments: This area is a mixture of responsibility between 
Facilities and Street care. Streetcare to be consulted on the treatment that 
was used in Pontardawe but as a quick fix the slabs have been power 
washed to remove any build-up of slippery film. Any loose areas have been 
repaired.

Discussion in meeting: Officers have been in touch with engineers and a 
quotation is being undertaken.

Recommendation: A quotation be undertaken for repair work on the 
uneven slabs and work will be undertaken following this.

3. The main approach comprises curved lengths of tactile corduroy 
paving; this should only be used to indicate a hazard and gives the 
tactile underfoot warning to visually impaired users ‘proceed with 
care’. This is inappropriate and could be confusing. The entire 
surface is also reportedly very slippery when wet.

Tudalen43



14

Officer’s comments: It is believed that this was installed after the 
construction of the Civic Centre following the recommendations of the NPT 
disability access group. If deemed necessary these slabs will need to be 
lifted up and replaced with ones to try and match the existing ones in the 
adjacent areas.

Recommendation: No current action, however take on board the 
comments made regarding redesign of tactile corduroy paving, for any 
future refurbishment.

4. Both entrances comprise revolving doors with side pass. These are 
not inclusive design as they require many disabled people to be 
separated from able-bodied people and this is discriminatory.

Officer’s comments: Due to the building design with the OSS and reception 
area in the foyer the use of revolving doors is considered necessary to 
avoid gusts of cold air affecting the staff working there. As mentioned there 
are opening doors adjacent to each revolving door that are available for 
disabled access and for emergency evacuation. 

Recommendation: Signpost the disabled access button clearer and 
move it closer to the door. Look into a sensor to enable these doors to 
open automatically.

5. The main entrance has its side pass door to the side and is barely 
visible. This is also not treating people as equals and gives the 
feeling of a secondary entrance, less important.

Officer’s comments: As 4 although signage could be improved to highlight 
the location of the door.

Recommendation: Signage to be improved to highlight the location of 
the door. 

6. The side pass door requires the user to take a large detour from their 
direct line of approach, which is neither convenient nor intuitive when 
trying to locate and use the control pad.

Officer’s comments: A control pad was specified to avoid the door opening 
unnecessarily and as a result avoid the OSS staff from becoming cold. We 
would recommend the control pad being relocated on a standalone post 
that includes signage.

Recommendation: Relocate the control pad to a standalone post and 
include signage.

7. Inside, the foyer comprises a double height space with hard surfaces 
all around. This makes the acoustics very difficult, especially 
considering the activities include using chairs in the eatery which 
scrape on the floor, clattering crockery, general conversations as 

Tudalen44



15

people meet, as well as trying to communicate with reception and at 
the booths / kiosks in that area.

Officer’s comments: Sound absorbing panels can be added to the limited 
walls and also the ceiling but due to the atrium situation it is felt that this will 
have little effect. Investigations have found that rubber finials may be able to 
be added to the coffee shop seating. A trial of these will be undertaken.

Recommendation: Trial of rubber finials to be undertaken and 
implemented if successful. 

8. The pillar in reception is not clearly defined and could be a collision 
hazard.

Officer’s comments: The reception is being decorated soon and this will be 
taken care of.

Recommendation: The pillar to be considered as part of the reception 
refurbishment. 

9. Comfortable seating is all of one type whereas people have differing 
needs.

Officer’s comments: Investigate seating options and costs. The existing 
seating is nearing 15 years old and could do with being refreshed. 

Discussion in meeting: It would be beneficial to obtain the advice of 
someone with a disability before purchasing seating; they will be able to 
assist in making suitable decisions. 

Recommendation: The seating will be refreshed, ensuring there is a 
mixture of seating options. A representative of the Disability Audit 
Working Group to be present to assist in this process. 
 

10.There are no hearing induction loops at the main receptions, 
although there is one at the cash desk it does not work.

Officer’s comments: Agreed that these need to be implemented.

Recommendation: Hearing induction loops at the main reception to be 
installed as possible.

11.The main reception desk is a single high surface at 1060mm AFL, 
which is too high for a wheelchair user or someone of short stature.

Officer’s comments: When designed the reception / OSS area did not have 
any screens dividing the counter up in to separate customer areas. There is 
an accessible point but this has subsequently been charged and taken as a 
designated OSS customer point. It is recommended that the end point 
closest to the reception area is removed.

Tudalen45



16

Recommendation: The end point closest to reception area be 
removed.

12.Many circulation doors are heavy to open:
Ground floor – both sets of double doors to reach committee rooms, 
committee room C door and both doors leading into Male and 
Female toilets respectively 
First floor – right hand leaf off the stairs into the main corridor, 
circulation door to reach mezzanine above reception and both doors 
leading into Male and Female toilets respectively.

Officer’s comments: Undertake a survey of all doors and adjust / replace 
door closers as required. The doors leading off the coffee shop area to the 
committee rooms can be added to the fire alarm system and held open if 
that is what would be what members wish.

Discussion in meeting: Certain legislations conflict, such as fire safety 
legislation and disability legislation. In relation to the financial position, 
Officers need to ensure they are balancing the budget buy taking into 
consideration what needs to be replaced and what could be replaced. 

Recommendation: Undertake a survey of all doors and adjust / replace 
door closers as required. Also look into adding push buttons to open 
the disabled toilet doors and reminder to the relevant staff to replace 
door closers regularly as they deteriorate with time. 

13.Tactile signage on the WC doors is very low, being installed at appx 
1100mm AFL. It is also very high on the Committee room C door, at 
1700mm.

Officer’s comments: Move the signage to the appropriate level if it can be 
done without damaging the finish of the doors, otherwise it is recommended 
to add supplementary signage. 

Discussion in meeting: the signage will either be moved or a new one will 
be added.

Recommendation: Signage to be moved to the appropriate level or 
supplementary signage to be added.

14.The two unisex accessible WC’s are both right sided transfer: one 
should be left sided to offer users a choice.
They also need minor adjustments:
The alarm cords are inadequate in reaching down towards the floor 
with a suitable hoop to grip;
The resets for the alarms are not reachable from the WC pans;
Visual contrast in the fixtures and fittings is poor;
There are no low-level coat hooks.

Tudalen46



17

Officer’s comments: To alter the location of the toilets would be a significant 
job that would involve re-routing the soil pipe. The other recommendations 
can be achieved at a reasonable cost and will be programmed in.

Recommendation: The alarm cords to be altered to allow for reaching 
down towards the floor with a suitable hoop to grip. The resets for the 
alarms to be made reachable from the WC pans. Visual contrast in the 
fixtures and fittings to be considered and low-level coat hooks to be 
installed. The alteration of the location of the toilets to be considered 
in future renovations. 

15.The ground floor accessible WC has a lock that always shows red on 
the outside.
The first floor accessible WC has a very small lock on the door, 
which some users may find awkward.

Officer’s comments: Order issued for the works

Recommendation: Toilet locks to be altered during the upcoming toilet 
renovations. 

16.There are Male and Female WC’s on both floors. These do not have 
ambulant disabled cubicles, which are required in regulation. The 
Female washroom layout facilitates ease of adapting the end cubicle, 
but the Male facility would require extensive reconfiguration of the 
WC layouts.

Officer’s comments: With full accessible toilets adjacent to each location it is 
not felt that this is a priority.

Recommendation: No action required. 

17. In the Mayor’s Parlour, there is a single WC provided. There was no 
light activated nor switch able to be located on entering.

Officer’s comments: Job issued to rectify the lighting problem.

Recommendation: Light in the Mayor’s Parlour WC, to be rectified 
accordingly. 

18.To exit the Mayor’s Room, the release switch is a small rocker switch 
that lacks visual contrast.

Officer’s comments: All door exit buttons to be changed for the larger type 
the next system service.

Recommendation: Door exit buttons to be changed for the larger type 
in the next system service, with the addition of moving buttons closer 
to the door to make them more accessible. 

19.Visual alarms are not provided in the WC’s or washrooms. A hearing-
impaired person may have difficulty in knowing when there is a need 
to evacuate and this could put them and others at risk.

Tudalen47



18

Officer’s comments: Visual alarms (flashing beacons) are provided they are 
built in to the fire alarm sounders. The fire wardens also sweep the toilets 
on an evacuation as part of their duties.

Recommendation: No action required. 

20.There are no evacuation lifts, however a fire safe area appears to be 
provided at the top of the stairs, with a telephone and evac-chair.
There is no statutory BS compliant Emergency Voice Communication 
(EVC) that allows reliability and assured availability for use - the 
provisions made also require too much dexterity.

Officer’s comments: Disabled refuges provided at every landing with 
telephone communication device to the ground floor. If telephones are not 
acceptable the use of intercoms can be explored. However as previously 
mentioned as we operate a fire warden fire evacuation procedure no one 
should be left un attended in the refuge.

Discussion in meeting: EVAC chair training for fire wardens will be 
completed by the end of February 2020. It was highlighted that currently, 
there aren’t any Elected Members trained in using the EVAC chair; 
Democratic Services Officers to liaise with facilities in regards to the dates 
of the training, and invite Elected Members to attend. More meeting space 
on the ground floor of the civic centre is also being looked into.

Recommendation: No action required. 

21.There is an evacuation chair provided by the stairs, but this 
encroaches the circulation by the telephone. The evac chair was 
thick with dust, suggesting it may have not been used for some time.

Officer’s comments: The location of the evac chairs will be assessed across 
the building, in relation to the dust, the chairs are not used on a regular 
basis but should be subject to an annual inspection.

Recommendation: Assess the location of the EVAC chairs to identify if 
there is a more suitable location for them. Inspect them on an annual 
basis. 

Tudalen48



19

Port Talbot Civic Centre

1. There are Blue Badge bays outside, which overall provide 2 
accessible bays out of 60 car parking spaces in total. This is just over 
3%, whereas BS 8300 states (on average) for the various uses they 
serve there should be around 5% at least. Part M also requires one 
space to be provided for each disabled employee that needs it in 
addition to this.

Officer’s comment: There is no formal agreement in place with the church to 
use the Civic car park although there are currently 8 spaces designated for 
their use. The current disabled parking bays are as close to the building as 
possible for members of the public. Having said this they are in excess off 
the recommended 50m maximum distance to the main entrance. In order to 
achieve closer public spaces and still maintain a closed barrier controlled 
car park will require a full redesign and possibly the relocation of the barrier.

Discussion in meeting: It is possible for staff to be notified that a blue badge 
holder will be visiting the civic centre by appointment, this would notify 
security to lift the barrier for the blue badge holder so that they can have 
closer access to the entrance of the building. There is also the opportunity 
to provide those who are visiting the building, with assistance if they need it; 
however this has not been advertised. It was added that home visits could 
be considered. 

Recommendation: Council to consider advertising blue badge 
appointments for those visiting the civic centre. An additional 
recommendation to be included in the report regarding an ‘on exit’ 
survey for the public.

2. The Blue Badge bays are too small (2.3 x 4.4m; they should be 2.4m 
x 4.8m) and on a slope of 1:27 gradient. They also lack any vertical 
signage

Officer’s comments: Whilst we are unable to alter the gradient of the ground 
where the bays currently are we can increase the sizes, the knock-on effect 
of this will be that we will lose a space.

Discussion in meeting: Members were informed that the square is 
pedestrianised and is not often allowed to be opened for vehicles; this 
would require thought into a complete re-design of the area.

Recommendation: No action required. 

3. The entrance to the ramp to approach the building from the car park 
is concealed from view by a raised bed with a hedge in it.

Officer’s comments: Easily achieved and can be progressed.

Recommendation: Visuals of the ramp to be improved. 

Tudalen49



20

4. There are two ramps to both sides of the main entrance. None of 
these meet standards. The gradients are 1:15 to 1:16 except for the 
ramp on the far left of the building, which is 1:10. They all have one 
or no handrails when two are required, and none have visual 
contrast.

Officer’s comments: This can be done but should be considered with points 
5 & 6, the rails should be installed after any modifications to the ramps have 
been made. In the past there have been some conversations around the 
refurbishment of the Civic square. If this is likely it would be better to link the 
ramp works in with this to provide a seamless scheme.

Recommendation: No current action required, but to be considered in 
line with any future re-design. 

5. By the theatre entrance, the cross-fall in the path is 1:12, which is far 
too steep.

See 4 for comments.

Recommendation: No current action required, but to be considered in 
line with any future re-design.

6. To the left side path, there are flower beds that narrow the path and 
could be a hazard to visually impaired people.

See 4 for comments.

Recommendation: No current action required, but to be considered in 
line with any future re-design.

7. The steps have no tactile paving at the bottom of the flight.
Officer’s comments: This can be done relatively easily by replacing the 
current block paving at the bottom of the steps.

Recommendation: Replace current block paving at the bottom of the 
steps with tactile paving.

8. Inside the entrance, the security reception desk has no lowered 
section for wheelchair users or people of short stature, and there is 
no hearing induction loop.

Officer’s comments: Agreed that this is not a public reception point.

Recommendation: No action required.

9. The entrance towards the lift and café has double doors that are both 
narrow (700mm) and very heavy (over 50N is required to open one 
leaf). The door handles are confusing as the pull handles are also on 
the push side, and signage has been added to state push / pull. The 
signage adds to unwanted visual clutter.

Officer’s comments: These sets of doors are an original set of aluminium 
and glass installed in an aluminium and glass side screen. It may possible 
to automate these doors although due to their age a specialist firm will need 
to be called in to assess the possibility. The other option is to remove the 
existing glazed scree and doors and replace with a new timber door set.

Tudalen50



21

Discussion in meeting: The specialist firm could visit the civic centre to 
discover the best option and prices; changes to make the doors more 
accessible could then be completed at an appropriate time, when needed. 
Facilities staff to send a reminder to all staff regarding cluttering the 
corridors and space outside of the security area.

Recommendation: Consider replacement of doors when they reach 
the end of their natural life and consider linking the fire alarm system 
to these doors. Facilities staff to send a reminder to all staff regarding 
cluttering the corridors and space outside of the security area.

10.The lift is the minimum size to meet regulations (1.1 x 1.4m) and not 
large enough for some mobility scooters.

Officer’s comments: Both sets of public access lifts were upgraded around 
four years ago, this work included putting the largest size cars possible in 
along with new lower buttons and voice notifications. They currently comply 
with the statutory requirements. Whilst they may be small for mobility 
scooters these are only really intended to assist the mobility impaired in 
getting around externally to any buildings.

Recommendation: No action required as this is a structural matter.

11.A few circulation doors are heavy to open:
• Café entrance (>50N)
• Both doors leading into Male and Female toilets at both ground and 1st 
floor levels (all >40N)
• Door at the end of the corridor at 2nd floor level leading to the stairs and 
safe refuge area (>50N)
• Door at top of the Council Chamber ramp (>40N)
Officer’s comments: The door closers on these doors have probably failed 
due to the age of the units. These will be replaced with new. In relation to 
the automation of the chamber door I suggest the chamber is dealt with as 
a separate entity.  

Recommendation: Undertake a survey of all doors and adjust / replace 
door closers as required. A survey to be completed on all doors that 
could be linked to the fire alarm regulations. 

12.The café area has accessible tables, allowing access and knee 
space for wheelchair users, but is all of one type / height and the 
chairs lack visual contrast against the floor.

Officer’s comments: Options around different types of hygienic seating to be 
explored.

Recommendation: Explore different types of hygienic seating.

13.There are accessible WC’s at ground and first floor level which are 
both too small, being 1.8m x 1.5m. They should be at least 2.2m x 

Tudalen51



22

1.5m. They are also both left sided transfers, and the sinks within 
them are too far from the WC pan. Other issues identified were as 
follows:
One handrail only by the sink, no full height mirror, alarm cords 
inadequate in reach / bangles fitted, light switch too high, flush 
handle on the wrong side of the cistern, visual contrast poor. 1st floor 
nib space on door is absent.

Officer’s comments: Due to the location on the accessible WCs and that 
they are constructed in solid masonry with rooms abutting them increasing 
their size will require considerable work. However improving them by 
relocating the wash hand basins and the emergency pull cords can be 
achieved relatively easily.

Recommendation: The alarm cords to be altered to allow for reaching 
down towards the floor with a suitable hoop to grip. The resets for the 
alarms to be made reachable from the WC pans. Visual contrast in the 
fixtures and fittings to be considered. Wash hand basins to be 
relocated. The alteration of the location of the toilets to be considered 
in future renovations.

14.There is no tactile signage on the WC doors.
Officer’s comments: To be programmed.

Recommendation: Include tactile signage on the WC doors as part of 
the upcoming toilet refurbishment.

15.There are Male and Female WC’s on both floors. Although one Male 
cubicle at 1st floor level has one handrail installed, there are no fully 
compliant ambulant disabled cubicles in either, and these are 
required in regulation. The Female washroom layout facilitates ease 
of adapting the end cubicles; the Male facility requires a mirror 
moving and a side door creating in the side by the urinals to achieve 
this.

Officer’s comment: This has been designed in to the toilet refurbishment.

Recommendation: Move mirror and create a side door by the urinals 
as part of the upcoming toilet refurbishments.

16.The urinals on ground and 1st floor levels do not have visual contrast 
against the walls.

See 15 for comments.

Recommendation: Visual contrast to be improved as part of the 
upcoming toilet refurbishments.

17.On the 1st and 2nd floors, many of the double doors in the corridor 
are too narrow and have their pull handles too high to facilitate 
reaching by a wheelchair user or someone of short stature. This 

Tudalen52



23

does not affect the doors on the level access to the chamber from 
the lift, however this does apply to:
• All other doors on all corridors;
• The doors on the 2nd floor to the room by the Council Chamber;
• The Committee room doors, apart from the one to Committee Room 
3 which is wider.

Officer’s comments: It is proposed to undertake a survey of all cross 
corridor doors, with the view of placing all doors that are not required to be 
closed for security reasons to be placed on hold open magnets linked back 
to the fire alarm. Those doors that are required for security will need to be 
replaced. The structural opening on the committee room doors will need to 
be surveyed to see if larger doors are able to be fitted.

Discussion in meeting: link this into survey (see point 11)

Recommendation: Undertake a survey of all doors and adjust / replace 
door closers as required. A survey to be completed on all doors that 
could be linked to the fire alarm regulations.

18.Lighting is too low in some areas:
1st floor corridor to the right on exiting the lift (20 lux) and in the main 
corridor the other way after the angled corner (50 lux);
On 2nd floor level, in the same places above (levels are 25-40 lux), 
but also on the approach landing towards and on the Council 
Chamber ramp (25 and 40 lux).
In the Council Chamber the levels are 70-80 lux on the desks in all 
rows apart from the 3rd row, where they are 160 lux.

Officer’s comment: It is recommended that an LED lighting upgrade is 
undertaken with priority given to these areas, not only will light levels be 
improved but they will be more energy efficient.

Recommendation: Progress with suitability study of LED lighting 
upgrade in consideration with the upcoming webcasting requirements 
of the Council Chamber. 

19.Circulation areas are fitted with carpets, which make mobilising in a 
manual wheelchair difficult for some disabled people.

Officer’s comment: To be actioned on any future refurbishment.

Recommendation: No current action required, but to be considered in 
line with any future re-design.

20.At the back of the first floor corridor, there is a social space with 
seating. This has a low ceiling that could be a hazard. There is also a 
projecting shelf on the column.

Officer’s comment: This area is in the bar of the Theatre and the manager 
will need to be consulted on any alterations, however there is no minimum 
room height requirement in Building Regulations.

Recommendation: No action required.

Tudalen53



24

21.There are desk mic’s provided for the committee meeting room; 
these amplify the ambient sound in the rooms via speakers. They 
require users to switch them on before speaking. There are no 
hearing induction loops provided and some hearing impaired people 
will not be able to communicate without this.

Officer’s comment: Fixed or portable induction loops can be provided. 
Consultation with the committee section will be undertaken to provide the 
most suitable solution.

Recommendation: Fixed or portable induction loops to be installed in 
the committee meeting rooms; facilities to consult with Democratic 
Services to provide the most suitable solution.

22.There is a ramp leading to the Public Gallery at the back of the 
Council Chamber. This is too narrow (900mm wide) and far too steep 
and long (1:10 for 6m length)

Officer’s comment: These recommendations along with those in items 11, 
18, 23 & 24 should all be considered in a full redesign of the Council 
Chamber as the existing layout does not easily lend itself to being disabled 
access friendly. In relation to the lighting an upgrade of the lights was 
undertaken around three years ago and whilst this improved the levels they 
are still low. This is linked to the walls of the chamber being a dark wood 
and absorbing the light as opposed to reflecting it around the room. Any 
modifications that involve works to the ceiling is extremely difficult as the 
existing ceiling tiles are very fragile and obsolete. 
 
Recommendation: To be considered in any re-design of the Council 
Chamber but to be mindful of these issues when making any changes 
for the upcoming webcasting requirements of the Council Chamber.

23.There are multiple levels to the Council Chamber. One row is at 
entrance level, which provides accessible spaces and includes 
access (min 800mm wide discounting chairs) to the straight row of 
places for the Leader and other senior members.
However, the remainder is not accessible due to steps; the Public 
Gallery has no access other than the overly steep ramp, which is not 
reasonable.

See 22 for comments.

Recommendation: To be considered in any re-design of the Council 
Chamber but to be mindful of these issues when making any changes 
for the upcoming webcasting requirements of the Council Chamber.

24.Other levels in the Council Chamber are also stepped, but there is no 
suitable location for a standard platform lift since it would block the 
aisle(s).

See 22 for comments.

Tudalen54



25

Recommendation: To be considered in any re-design of the Council 
Chamber but to be mindful of these issues when making any changes 
for the upcoming webcasting requirements of the Council Chamber.

25.Pictures
N/A

26.Visual alarms are not provided in the WC’s or washrooms. A hearing-
impaired person may have difficulty in knowing when there is a need 
to evacuate and this could put them and others at risk.

Officer’s comment: An order has been issued for this work and it will be 
undertaken in conjunction with the toilet refurbishments.

Recommendation: Install visual alarms in the WCs and washrooms as 
part of the upcoming toilet refurbishment. 

27.There are no evacuation lifts, however fire safe areas appear to be 
provided at the top of the stair cases, with evac-chairs.
There is no statutory BS compliant Emergency Voice Communication 
(EVC) that allows reliability and assured availability for use.
The evac chair by the first floor social space is not easily visible from 
the primary route to the stair core.

Officer’s comment: Voice refuge systems are installed at every stair landing 
so we’re not sure why this was picked up. All fire wardens are going through 
evac chair training along with the Theatre staff.
PEEPs are included in the corporate Fire Safety procedure CP/23. 

Recommendation: Assess the location of the EVAC chairs to identify if 
there is a more suitable location for them. Inspect them on an annual 
basis.

Tudalen55



26

ADDITIONAL RECOMMENDATIONS 

Recommendation 1 – That a secondary disability audit be 
considered to focus on mental health and neurodiverse barriers 
within Council buildings. 

Recommendation 2 – That the Cabinet Member for Equalities be 
tasked with considering a public exit survey, which should be 
produced and completed, by visitors to the Civic Centres, to obtain 
feedback on the disabled access of each building and any issues 
they faced.

Recommendation 3 – That Terms of Reference for the Disability 
Audit Working Group are amended to allow the Group to meet on 
a consultative basis, as and when required, and to monitor the 
recommendations from this report.

Recommendation 4 – That Evac Chair training is made available 
to Elected Members.

 

Tudalen56



27

TABLES OF EVIDENCE

The tables of evidence provide opportunity to view the work of the 

Disability Audit Group. The evidence displays how they considered 

each of the recommendations provided by Proudlock Associates. 

The work is evidenced in the following tables:

 Neath Civic Centre – Recommendations Workshop 

 Port Talbot Civic Centre – Recommendations Workshop 

Inclusive Design and Access Audit Notes Key

Priority 1 Where there are potential health and safety risks to disabled 
people or where failure to implement changes would be highly 
likely to attract legal implications. Immediate action is 
recommended to put changes into effect.

Priority 2 Where action is recommended within the short term to alleviate 
an access problem or make improvements that will have a 
considerable impact.

Priority 3 Where action is recommended within 12 – 24 months to improve 
access.

Priority 4 Where the recommendation should be implemented as part of a 
long-term plan, due to large scale works being required, 
considerable cost implications or some other similarly restricting 
and insurmountable factor(s).

Est Cost: L Low (L) None - £500
Est Cost: M Med (M) £500 - £1,000
Est Cost: H High (H) £1,000 - £5,000
Est Cost: Str Structural (Str) £5,000 - £10,000
Est Cost: Ex Extensive (Ex) £10,000 or more

Tudalen57



28

NEATH CIVIC CENTRE RECOMMENDATIONS - WORKSHOP

No. Observation / 
Comments

Recommended Action Priority Est. 
Cost

Action Priority Comments 

1 There are Blue Badge bays 
outside and in the adjacent 
car park, which are all 
correctly marked out. The 
direct route from the car 
park involves negotiating 
doors which include the 
outer door to the car park 
building, which is very 
heavy and has a handle 
that is difficult to grip.

Seek contact for car park and 
advise them: 
The handle should be 
replaced with a circular section 
pull handle, visually 
contrasting and located 
between 900 and 1100mm 
AFL.
To service, repair or replace 3 
door closer to provide 
maximum opening force of 
30N to 30 degrees and 22.5N 
to 60 degrees. 

2 L Seek advice from 
officers on how they 
would suggest 
proceeding with the 
recommendation.

Low Other access is 
available so the 
Group does not 
consider this an 
urgent priority. 

2 The approach to the 
building from the car park 
has some uneven slabs 
and edges that need repair, 
or they could cause an 
accident by trapping a 
wheelchair castor or a heel. 
The surface is also 
reportedly very slippery 
when wet.

Repair loose slabs and re-lay 
slabs as required to eliminate 
gaps.

Treat or replace surface to 
ensure it is non-slip when wet 
or dry.

2

3

M

Str 

Maintenance 
schedule to be 
checked and repairs 
to be addressed 
urgently. 

Explore the 
‘Pontadawe texture 
resurfacing’ model – 
texturing/grooving of 
slabs.

Medium 

This has recently 
been completed, 
which has removed 
the slippery surface 
issues at relatively 
low cost and 
equipment and 
technique is known to 
the Council. 

T
udalen58



29

3 The main approach 
comprises curved lengths 
of tactile corduroy paving; 
this should only be used to 
indicate a hazard and gives 
the tactile underfoot 
warning to visually impaired 
users ‘proceed with care’. 
This is inappropriate and 
could be confusing. The 
entire surface is also 
reportedly very slippery 
when wet.

At the next refurbishment, 
consult with visually impaired 
users and remove corduroy if 
agreed. It is nearly always 
used only at the ends of flights 
of outdoor steps. Note that if 
way finding paving is intended, 
only the correct way guidance 
path (see DETR guidance) 
should be used.

Treat or replace surface to 
ensure it is non-slip when wet 
or dry.

3

3

H

Str 

Seek views of 
someone with a 
visual impairment 
(RNIB) to determine 
whether or not this 
is a problem.

Low Initial observations 
and feedback from 
service users is that 
the tactile paving is 
beneficial to those 
with a visual 
impairment and it 
was suggested that 
the recommendation 
could be a subjective 
view. 

4 Both entrances comprise 
revolving doors with side 
pass. These are not 
inclusive design as they 
require many disabled 
people to be separated 
from able-bodied people 
and this is discriminatory.

The configurations meet 
building regulations, however 
for best practice an entrance 
to both sides that could be 
shared should be created, 
such as double-leaf automatic 
sliding doors. A lobby 
arrangement could assist with 
reducing air movement (two 
pairs of doors for each 
entrance) if necessary.

4 Ex No action required. Low

5 The main entrance has its 
side pass door to the side 
and is barely visible. This is 
also not treating people as 
equals and gives the 
feeling of a secondary 
entrance, less important.

See above recommendation. 
As an interim measure, 
provide clear signage to the 
side door, using wheelchair 
symbol (see appendices).

2 L Same action as 
above, but do take 
forward the 
recommendation of 
providing clear 
signage to the side 
pass door. 

Low

Take on board the 
comments and 
recommendations but 
it is not considered a 
priority and no action 
will be taken. T

udalen59



30

6 The side pass door 
requires the user to take a 
large detour from their 
direct line of approach, 
which is neither convenient 
nor intuitive when trying to 
locate and use the control 
pad.

Relocate control pad on 
visually contrasting back plate 
on visually contrasting bollard 
on the route towards the door 
from the pavement, 1400mm 
back from the door swing.

3 M Explore the 
potential of installing 
a sensor to keep the 
door open before 
considering other 
elements of the 
recommendation as 
a sensor could 
alleviate the issues 
raised. 

Medium Action to be 
completed as a high 
priority. 

7 Inside, the foyer comprises 
a double height space with 
hard surfaces all around. 
This makes the acoustics 
very difficult, especially 
considering the activities 
include using chairs in the 
eatery which scrape on the 
floor, clattering crockery, 
general conversations as 
people meet, as well as 
trying to communicate with 
reception and at the booths 
/ kiosks in that area.

At the next refurbishment, add 
sound absorbing surfaces 
such as new wall or ceiling 
materials. A wheelchair-
accessible low-pile firm carpet 
may also help but should be 
consulted on and tested out 
first.

4 H Explore the 
possibility of 
locating noise 
reducing notice 
boards in strategic 
locations across the 
concourse. 

Look to introduce 
hearing-loop 
solution as a high 
priority. 

Consider equalities 
training for 
Customer Services 
staff on identifying 
and working with 
members of the 
public with 
disabilities/stress 
and anxiety/difficult 
situations.

High As a full 
refurbishment of the 
building is not 
planned, the Group 
took on board the 
comments but 
instead considered 
other mitigating 
options as detailed in 
the action log.

T
udalen60



31

Source different foot 
covers for the legs 
of the chairs in the 
reception area to 
reduce scraping 
noise when moving 
the chairs.

8 The pillar in reception is not 
clearly defined and could 
be a collision hazard.

Provide visual contrast to 
entire pillar or to band 150mm 
deep at 1500mm AFL.

3 L Consider painting or 
taping the pillar to 
provide visual 
contrast.

Medium 

9 Comfortable seating is all 
of one type whereas people 
have differing needs.

Provide variety of heights and 
types, including some seating 
with arms. See appendices.

4 M Action the 
recommendation.

Medium 

10 There are no hearing 
induction loops at the main 
receptions. Although there 
is one at the cash desk, 
however it does not work.

Provide hearing induction 
loops at the main receptions / 
at least one of each type of 
service desk. Include signage 
and staff training on how to 
switch on / how they work / 
how they are tested and 
maintained.

2 M As per item 7. High

11 The main reception desk is 
a single high surface at 
1060mm AFL, which is too 
high for a wheelchair user 
or someone of short 
stature.

Provide low section to main 
reception desk, no higher than 
760mm AFL, and at least wide 
enough for a wheelchair user 
+ carer (1500mm).

3 M Action the 
recommendation. 

High

12 Many circulation doors are 
heavy to open:
Ground floor – both sets of 
double doors to reach 

Service, repair or replace door 
closers to provide maximum 
opening force of 30N and as 
detailed in the appendix.

2 L Consider electric 
doors or a sensor 
for the doors, to 

High Ground floor doors 
are a high priority, 
especially the 
entrance doors. 

T
udalen61



32

committee rooms, 
committee room C door 
and both doors leading into 
Male and Female toilets 
respectively 
First floor – right hand leaf 
off the stairs into the main 
corridor, circulation door to 
reach mezzanine above 
reception and both doors 
leading into Male and 
Female toilets respectively.

allow for easier 
access. 

13 Tactile signage on the WC 
doors is very low, being 
installed at appx 1100mm 
AFL. It is also very high on 
the Committee room C 
door, at 1700mm.

Consult users and if agreed 
relocate to 1400mm – 
1700mm and as near to mid-
range as possible, as per the 
guidance of Sign Design 
Guide (see appendices).

2 L Move the tactile 
signage to a more 
appropriate level. 

Medium 

14 The two unisex accessible 
WC’s are both right sided 
transfer: one should be left 
sided to offer users a 
choice.
They also need minor 
adjustments:
The alarm cords are 
inadequate in reaching 
down towards the floor with 
a suitable hoop to grip;
The resets for the alarms 
are not reachable from the 
WC pans;
Visual contrast in the 
fixtures and fittings is poor;

At the next refurbishment, 
reconfigure 1st floor facility to 
left sided.

Provide full length alarm cords 
with two hoops / bangles on 
each.
Relocate resets to next to the 
WC pans.
Provide visual contrasting to 
the grab rails and WC seat 
(e.g. replace with black / dark 
colour)

3

All 2

H

All M

No action required. 

Action the 
recommendation.  

High

Take on board the 
comments and 
recommendations but 
it is not considered a 
priority and no action 
will be taken.

Grab rails are usually 
bulk provided in 
white. The Group 
recognised that 
purchasing dark 
coloured grab rails 
could prove more 
difficult and costly.

T
udalen62



33

There are no low-level coat 
hooks.

Install hooks on the wall above 
open floor space at 1050mm 
AFL.
See also rows below.

15 The ground floor accessible 
WC has a lock that always 
shows red on the outside.
The first floor accessible 
WC has a very small lock 
on the door, which some 
users may find awkward.

Provide lock that indicates 
accurately whether the facility 
is occupied and avoiding red-
green (which colour-blind 
people cannot discern 
between).

Provide lock that is usable with 
a closed fist.

3

2

L

L

Action the 
recommendation.  

Action the 
recommendation.  

High

High

16 There are Male and 
Female WC’s on both 
floors. These do not have 
ambulant disabled cubicles, 
which are required in 
regulation. The Female 
washroom layout facilitates 
ease of adapting the end 
cubicle, but the Male facility 
would require extensive 
reconfiguration of the WC 
layouts.

Provide ambulant disabled 
WC in the Male facility at the 
next major refurbishment. As 
an interim arrangement, 
disabled men could make use 
of the accessible WC.

Provide ambulant disabled 
WC cubicle by adapting the far 
end cubicle in the Female 
washrooms (see photo), 
rehanging the door to hinge on 
the other side and outwards, 
with higher WC pan seat and 
as guided by the appendices.

4

3

H

M

No action required.

No action required.

Take on board 
comments and 
recommendations but 
it is not considered a 
priority and no action 
will be taken.

Take on board 
comments and 
recommendations but 
it is not considered a 
priority and no action 
will be taken.

17 In the Mayor’s Parlour, 
there is a single WC 
provided. There was no 
light activated nor switch 
able to be located on 
entering.

Check lighting works and 
repair if necessary.

For best practice, fit out as 
ambulant disabled, as per the 
appendices.

2

4

L

L

Action the 
recommendation.

No action required.

Low

Take on board 
comments and 
recommendations but 
it is not considered a 

T
udalen63



34

priority and no action 
will be taken.

18 To exit the Mayor’s Room, 
the release switch is a 
small rocker switch that 
lacks visual contrast.

For best practice relocate 
large push button door release 
to within 200mm of the door 
frame, and ensure it has visual 
contrast.

4 L Action the 
recommendation. 

Medium

19 Visual alarms are not 
provided in the WC’s or 
washrooms. A hearing-
impaired person may have 
difficulty in knowing when 
there is a need to evacuate 
and this could put them and 
others at risk.

It is advisable to check that all 
disabled people have a 
Personal Emergency Egress 
Plan (PEEP) in place 
wherever they are in the 
building. Visitors should be the 
responsibility of the host who 
should explain the procedure 
for them to evacuate. 
Alternatively, visitors should 
have their own plan provided 
by the building management 
on arrival at the ground floor. 
Note that there are some 
heavy doors which should be 
corrected (see other 
recommendations earlier in 
this report) and this potential 
barrier must be overcome 
even if it means temporarily 
using assistance. 

Provide visual alarms in the 
longer term.

1

3

L

H

Action the 
recommendation. 

Action the 
recommendation.

High

High

Fire Wardens have 
the responsibility to 
check their allocated 
areas. 

20 There are no evacuation 
lifts, however a fire safe 
area appears to be 

It is advisable to check that all 
disabled people have a 
Personal Emergency Egress 

1 L Check if staff who 
have a disability 

Medium

T
udalen64



35

provided at the top of the 
stairs, with a telephone and 
evac-chair.
There is no statutory BS 
compliant Emergency 
Voice Communication 
(EVC) that allows reliability 
and assured availability for 
use - the provisions made 
also require too much 
dexterity.

Plan (PEEP) in place 
wherever they are in the 
building. Visitors should be the 
responsibility of the host who 
should explain the procedure 
for them to evacuate or also 
have a PEEP. Note that the 
cores have heavy doors which 
should be corrected (see 
further recommendations) and 
this potential barrier must be 
overcome even if it means 
temporarily using assistance. 

An Emergency Voice 
Communication is also 
recommended, and in the 
interim a manual message 
system must be in place to 
ensure communication to / 
from the refuge area is 
facilitated by staff. See 
appendices.

1 M

have a PEEP in 
place.

No action required. 

The Council is 
exploring wider 
elements in relation 
to webcasting and 
public participation, 
so facilities will need 
to be adapted in line 
with this. Emergency 
voice communication 
could be considered 
as this wider work is 
taken forward. 

21 There is an evacuation 
chair provided by the stairs, 
but this encroaches the 
circulation by the 
telephone. The evac chair 
was thick with dust, 
suggesting it may have not 
been used for some time.

Relocate evac chair to allow a 
space 900mm x 1400mm by 
the telephone or EVC. NB The 
evacuation chair will need to 
be deployed by trained staff, 
who must be at hand to 
respond in case of the need by 
a disabled person. It therefore 
must be clearly visible. The 
PEEP associated with any 
disabled individual who may 

1 LM Identify how often 
the evac-chair is 
used for training 
and who is trained 
to use it. 

Gather information 
on Fire Warden 
roles and training 

High 

T
udalen65



36

be evacuated this way should 
address this, naming the staff 
trained to assist them, 
ensuring they are up-to-date 
with using the evac chair by 
practising regularly, etc.

- How many Fire 
Wardens are there 
and their allocation?

- How often do fire 
drills take place and 
what type?

- Do full evac-chair 
exercises take place 
and if so, how 
often?

Check pre plan 
maintenance of 
evac-chair 
equipment. 

T
udalen66



37

PORT TALBOT CIVIC CENTRE RECOMMENDATIONS - WORKSHOP

No. Observation / 
Comments

Recommended Action Priority Est. 
Cost

Action Priority Comments

1 There are Blue Badge bays 
outside, which overall 
provide 2 accessible bays 
out of 60 car parking 
spaces in total. This is just 
over 3%, whereas BS 8300 
states (on average) for the 
various uses they serve 
there should be around 5% 
at least. Part M also 
requires one space to be 
provided for each disabled 
employee that needs it in 
addition to this.

Seek out other contacts for 
users of the car park (e.g. in 
the church) and consult other 
users with a view to increasing 
this provision to at least 5%.

2 L Look at the contract 
and agreements 
with the church. 
Identify what their 
requirements are 
and potentially 
renegotiate disabled 
spaces.

Find out the 
requirements of Part 
M and gain a better 
understanding of 
what Part M is, to 
be able to 
determine if it is 
achievable. 

Survey blue badge 
applicants, asking 
how they got here, 
where did they park 
and any 
accessibility issues. 

Need to identify what 
people’s issues are 
and what they 
require before taking 
the action. 

2 The Blue Badge bays are 
too small (2.3 x 4.4m; they 
should be 2.4m x 4.8m) 
and on a slope of 1:27 

The bays should be at least 
2.4m x 4.8m with 1200mm 
safe transfer zones to one side 
(preferably two) plus on one 

3 H Action the 
recommendation as 
per officer’s advice.

T
udalen67



38

gradient. They also lack 
any vertical signage.

end. They should be on level 
ground, ie less steep than 
1:40, less than 1:60 preferably. 
Provide vertical signage if 
relocating to the car park 
edge.

3 The entrance to the ramp to 
approach the building from 
the car park is concealed 
from view by a raised bed 
with a hedge in it.

Provide signage (min 300mm 
tall) to indicate the ramped 
path leading to the building 
from the car park. See 
appendices for guidance.

2 L Action the 
recommendation.

No. 3 to 7 are linked 
together and could 
be considered as one 
piece of work. 

4 There are two ramps to 
both sides of the main 
entrance. None of these 
meet standards. The 
gradients are 1:15 to 1:16 
except for the ramp on the 
far left of the building, 
which is 1:10. They all have 
one or no handrails when 
two are required, and none 
have visual contrast.

Provide compliant ramps by 
extending them to give 
compliant gradients. Ensure 
that each has two handrails, 
as detailed in the appendices, 
and a visual contrasting 
surface.

3 Str Railings to be put 
up against the 
external ramp at the 
side of the building. 

5 By the theatre entrance, the 
cross-fall in the path is 
1:12, which is far too steep.

Rebuild path to eliminate 
cross-fall steeper than 1:40

3 Str Officers to consider 
risks and costings 
before deciding 
what action will be 
taken.

To be considered 
when refurbishments 
are being completed.

6 To the left side path, there 
are flower beds that narrow 
the path and could be a 
hazard to visually impaired 
people.

Relocate the beds to outside 
the width of the path, allowing 
an upstand kerb and 
balustrade on the path edge, 
thereby increasing the 
available path width. Use 
paving that is non-slip even 
when wet.

3 Str Officers to consider 
risks and costings 
before deciding 
what action will be 
taken.

To be considered 
when refurbishments 
are being completed.

T
udalen68



39

7 The steps have no tactile 
paving at the bottom of the 
flight.

Provide tactile paving in 
accordance with the DETR 
guidance.

2 L Risk assessments 
and number of 
complaints against 
the paving to be 
sourced before 
deciding what action 
will be taken.

8 Inside the entrance, the 
security reception desk has 
no lowered section for 
wheelchair users or people 
of short stature, and there 
is no hearing induction 
loop.

At the next refurbishment, 
provide security reception with 
surface at 760mm AFL and a 
hearing loop with the correct 
BS signage.

3 M No action needed. 
Recommendation 
not accepted. 

Security is not a 
reception desk. 

9 The entrance towards the 
lift and café has double 
doors that are both narrow 
(700mm) and very heavy 
(over 50N is required to 
open one leaf). The door 
handles are confusing as 
the pull handles are also on 
the push side, and signage 
has been added to state 
push / pull. The signage 
adds to unwanted visual 
clutter.

Replace doors with a door that 
allows an effective clear width 
(ECW) of at least 800mm. 
Provide view through door and 
pull handle only on the pull 
side, push plate only on the 
other, and visual contrasting to 
these features. Remove sign. 
See appendices for details.

2 M Action the 
recommendation.

10 The lift is the minimum size 
to meet regulations (1.1 x 
1.4m) and not large enough 
for some mobility scooters.

For best practice, at the next 
opportunity, increase lift size to 
preferably 1650 x 1400mm

4 Str Explore all 
possibilities to 
maximize the lift 
capacity/size.

Wheelchairs do not 
fit in the lifts. 
Excludes wheelchair 
users from accessing 
meetings etc.

To be considered 
when refurbishments 
are being completed.

T
udalen69



40

11 A few circulation doors are 
heavy to open:
• Café entrance (>50N)
• Both doors leading into 
Male and Female toilets at 
both ground and 1st floor 
levels (all >40N)
• Door at the end of the 
corridor at 2nd floor level 
leading to the stairs and 
safe refuge area (>50N)
• Door at top of the Council 
Chamber ramp (>40N)

Service, repair or replace door 
closers to provide maximum 
opening force of 30N and as 
detailed in the appendix.

Consider automatic door for 
ramp into Council Chamber. 
See also further 
recommendations below for 
Council Chamber access.

2

3

L

M

Action the 
recommendation.

Consider 
technological 
solutions to exist in 
the doors. 

12 The café area has 
accessible tables, allowing 
access and knee space for 
wheelchair users, but is all 
of one type / height and the 
chairs lack visual contrast 
against the floor.

Provide variety of visually 
contrasting seating, varying 
the heights and types, 
including some seats with 
arms. See appendices.

4 M Action the 
recommendation.

Contrasting seating 
to be sourced at the 
next refreshment of 
furniture but different 
sizes of seating to be 
sourced immediately. 

13 There are accessible WC’s 
at ground and first floor 
level which are both too 
small, being 1.8m x 1.5m. 
They should be at least 
2.2m x 1.5m. They are also 
both left sided transfers, 
and the sinks within them 
are too far from the WC 
pan. Other issues identified 
were as follows:
One handrail only by the 
sink, no full height mirror, 
alarm cords inadequate in 
reach / bangles fitted, light 

Reconfigure Accessible WC’s 
at both levels to provide the 
required size, including door 
arrangement and layout, min 
2.2m x 1.5m, making the 
ground floor facility right and 
the 1st floor left sided transfer. 
Fit out to meet the guidance in 
the appendices.

As an interim measure, correct 
the alarm cords by providing 
longer reaches and correctly 
aligned hoops / bangles as 
guided by the appendix.

3

2

Str

L

To be considered by 
Officers and enact 
the interim 
measures. 

To be considered 
when refurbishments 
are being completed.

T
udalen70



41

switch too high, flush 
handle on the wrong side of 
the cistern, visual contrast 
poor. 1st floor nib space on 
door is absent.

14 There is no tactile signage 
on the WC doors.

For best practice, install tactile 
and braille signage to all WC 
doors.

4 M Action the 
recommendation.

Explore the 
introduction of a 
braille panel of the 
layout of the building, 
to be put in the 
entrances. 

15 There are Male and Female 
WC’s on both floors. 
Although one Male cubicle 
at 1st floor level has one 
handrail installed, there are 
no fully compliant ambulant 
disabled cubicles in either, 
and these are required in 
regulation. The Female 
washroom layout facilitates 
ease of adapting the end 
cubicles; the Male facility 
requires a mirror moving 
and a side door creating in 
the side by the urinals to 
achieve this.

Provide ambulant disabled WC 
in the Male facility at the next 
major refurbishment. As an 
interim arrangement, disabled 
men could make use of the 
accessible WC. See also 
recommendation above which 
may also affect these facilities.

Provide ambulant disabled WC 
cubicle by adapting the far end 
cubicle in the Female 
washrooms (see photo), 
rehanging the door to hinge on 
the other side and outwards, 
with higher WC pan seat and 
grab rails as guided by the 
appendices. See also row 
above, which also affect these 
facilities.

4

3

H

M

To be considered by 
Officers and enact 
the interim 
measures.

To be considered 
when refurbishments 
are being completed.

16 The urinals on ground and 
1st floor levels do not have 
visual contrast against the 
walls.

Provide visual contrast to all 
urinals

2 L Action the 
recommendation. 

T
udalen71



42

17 On the 1st and 2nd floors, 
many of the double doors in 
the corridor are too narrow 
and have their pull handles 
too high to facilitate 
reaching by a wheelchair 
user or someone of short 
stature. This does not affect 
the doors on the level 
access to the chamber from 
the lift, however this does 
apply to:
• All other doors on all 
corridors;
• The doors on the 2nd floor 
to the room by the Council 
Chamber;
• The Committee room 
doors, apart from the one to 
Committee Room 3 which 
is wider.

Replace double door sets with 
a leaf-and-a-half arrangement, 
including a leaf at least 
800mm in ECW and relocate 
door handles to facilitate 
reaching 900-1100mm at 
most.

In the interim, assistance 
should be provided when 
needed.

3

2

H

L

Action the 
recommendation.

Consider 
technological 
solutions to exist in 
the doors.

18 Lighting is too low in some 
areas:
1st floor corridor to the right 
on exiting the lift (20 lux) 
and in the main corridor the 
other way after the angled 
corner (50 lux);
On 2nd floor level, in the 
same places above (levels 
are 25-40 lux), but also on 
the approach landing 
towards and on the Council 
Chamber ramp (25 and 40 
lux).

Increase lighting in circulation 
areas to at least 150-200 lux, 
in accordance with guidance.

Increase lighting to at least 
250 lux on desks / tables 
intended for reading hard copy 
on, preferably to 400 lux.

3

3

M

M

Action the 
recommendation.

T
udalen72



43

In the Council Chamber the 
levels are 70-80 lux on the 
desks in all rows apart from 
the 3rd row, where they are 
160 lux.

19 Circulation areas are fitted 
with carpets, which make 
mobilising in a manual 
wheelchair difficult for some 
disabled people.

At the next refurbishment, 
provide carpet or surface that 
is firm, non-slip and easy to 
push on. Consult with 
wheelchair users if possible 
before acquiring.

4 H To be considered 
when 
refurbishments are 
being completed.

Current carpets are 
also unhygienic.  

20 At the back of the first floor 
corridor, there is a social 
space with seating. This 
has a low ceiling that could 
be a hazard. There is also 
a projecting shelf on the 
column.

Block access with barrier such 
as artwork to effectively 
cordon off the area where 
headroom is less than 2.1m.

Provide white or light colour 
corner trims at least 110mm 
width wrapping around the 
projecting vertical corner 
edges to the shelf.

2

3

L

L

Action the 
recommendation.

21 There are desk mic’s 
provided for the committee 
meeting room; these 
amplify the ambient sound 
in the rooms via speakers. 
They require users to 
switch them on before 
speaking. There are no 
hearing induction loops 
provided and some hearing 
impaired people will not be 
able to communicate 
without this.

Provide hearing induction loop 
to the room or provide portable 
desk mic’s with integrated 
induction loop, consulting with 
members before acquiring to 
ensure the solution is 
appropriate. Where provided, 
add signage.

Disability equality and deaf 
awareness training is 
recommended to all council 
members and staff with whom 
they regularly meet or liaise, to 
ensure that they are aware of 

3

2

H

M

Action the 
recommendation.

Desk microphones in 
Committee Rooms 
work well. 

Equalities and 
etiquette training is 
currently being 
organised for 
Members and staff, 
in particular customer 
services staff.

T
udalen73



44

the etiquette around disability 
and communicating, for 
example the importance of 
good lighting on faces, 
speaking clearly with 
unobstructed lips, having 
suitable meeting room layouts 
(round tables are generally 
preferred), with suitable 
hearing enhancement systems 
installed (switched on, tested 
out regularly and maintained).

22 There is a ramp leading to 
the Public Gallery at the 
back of the Council 
Chamber. This is too 
narrow (900mm wide) and 
far too steep and long (1:10 
for 6m length)

It is not deemed reasonable to 
adjust the ramp. See next row.

- - To be considered 
when 
refurbishments are 
being completed. 

Officers to be asked 
to comment on the 
recommended 
actions.

No. 22 to 24 to be 
considered together. 

23 There are multiple levels to 
the Council Chamber. One 
row is at entrance level, 
which provides accessible 
spaces and includes 
access (min 800mm wide 
discounting chairs) to the 
straight row of places for 
the Leader and other senior 
members.
However, the remainder is 
not accessible due to steps; 
the Public Gallery has no 
access other than the 

To access the Public Gallery, 
remove the steps (see photo), 
reconfigure the space by the 
middle doors (currently the 
entrance is stepped) and 
provide a through-doors type 
platform stair lift giving access 
to a newly formed level at the 
same height as the top of the 
ramp. There should also be 
new steps adjacent to the 
ramp. (See appendices for 
details). It is advised to replace 
the entire Public Gallery parts 
with a single level, adding a 

3 Ex As above (No.22) Ceredigion Council 
Chamber to be used 
as a reference. 

T
udalen74



45

overly steep ramp, which is 
not reasonable.

new balustrade, in order to 
give plenty circulation (at 
present the level is split). The 
ramp outside the room should 
remain, as it could feasibly 
form a means of (assisted) 
escape, subject to a suitable 
strategy being in place.

24 Other levels in the Council 
Chamber are also stepped, 
but there is no suitable 
location for a standard 
platform lift since it would 
block the aisle(s).

Carry out feasibility study with 
a view to providing a Sesame-
type platform lift (see photo for 
similar product). See 
appendices for details.

4 Ex As above (No.22)

25 2 L N/A

T
udalen75



46

26 Visual alarms are not 
provided in the WC’s or 
washrooms. A hearing-
impaired person may have 
difficulty in knowing when 
there is a need to evacuate 
and this could put them and 
others at risk.

It is advisable to check that all 
disabled people have a 
Personal Emergency Egress 
Plan (PEEP) in place wherever 
they are in the building. 
Visitors should be the 
responsibility of the host who 
should explain the procedure 
for them to evacuate. 
Alternatively, visitors should 
have their own plan provided 
by the building management 
on arrival at the ground floor if 
they may be alone at any time. 
Note that there are some 
heavy doors which should also 
be corrected (see other 
recommendations earlier in 
this report) and this potential 
barrier must be overcome 
even if it means temporarily 
using assistance with these 
doors.

Provide visual alarms in the 
longer term.

1

3

L

H

Action the 
recommendation.
 

27 There are no evacuation 
lifts, however fire safe 
areas appear to be 
provided at the top of the 
stair cases, with evac-
chairs.
There is no statutory BS 
compliant Emergency 
Voice Communication 
(EVC) that allows reliability 

An Emergency Voice 
Communication is 
recommended in each safe 
refuge area, and in the interim 
a manual message system 
must be in place to ensure 
communication to / from the 
refuge area is facilitated by 
staff. See appendices.

1

1

H

L

No action required.

Identify how often 
the evac-chair is 
used for training 
and who is trained 
to use it. 

T
udalen76



47

and assured availability for 
use.
The evac chair by the first 
floor social space is not 
easily visible from the 
primary route to the stair 
core.

Check that the evac chair is 
suitably located for use by the 
relevant people.

The PEEP associated with any 
disabled individual who may 
be evacuated this way should 
address this, naming the staff 
trained to assist them, 
ensuring they are up-to-date 
with using the evac chair by 
practising regularly, etc.

1 L

Gather information 
on Fire Warden 
roles and training 
-How many Fire 
Wardens are there 
and their allocation?
-How often do fire 
drills take place and 
what type?
-Do full evac-chair 
exercises take place 
and if so, how 
often?

Check pre plan 
maintenance of 
evac-chair 
equipment.

Check if staff who 
have a disability 
have a PEEP in 
place.

T
udalen77



48
Tudalen78



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE

3 March 2020

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Digital Officer

Matter for Decision

Wards Affected: All wards

Democratic Services – Assessment of Resources to support the 
Democratic Services Function

Purpose of the Report:

1. To report the outcome of an assessment of the adequacy of 
resources available to support the democratic services function of 
the Council.

Background:

2. The Head of Democratic Services has a statutory responsibility to 
organise the discharge of the “democratic services functions” in 
accordance with the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 
which includes:

 The production of reports, as required, on the number of
staff required to support democratic services and how the
staff should be organised to ensure the Council, the Cabinet
and Committees receive high level support in the discharge
of its democratic functions.

3. Since I reported my last assessment to the Democratic Services 
Committee, there have been a number of developments that have 
impacted on the workload of Democratic Services:

Tudalen79

Eitem yr Agenda5



a) Further strengthening of the scrutiny function to respond to 
developments agreed by the Chairs and Vice Chairs of the 
scrutiny committees;

b) Establishment of support for the Joint Scrutiny Committee 
charged with holding the Joint Committee for the Swansea Bay 
City Deal to account;

c) Publication of the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Bill 
by the Welsh Assembly Government  - this Bill proposing 
significant new duties including: mandatory webcasting of all 
Council meetings; mandatory petition schemes; a duty to create 
a public participation scheme that will strengthen public 
involvement in the Democratic Process; and further 
development of family absence provisions for elected members.

4. Attention will also need to be given towards the end of the next 
civic year to preparations for the local government elections 2022. 
A significant piece of work will be to design and deliver the 
induction programme for Members returned in those elections. 

5. Taken together, these developments will increase the workload of 
Democratic Services and introduce changes to roles.

6. The structure chart in Appendix 1 sets out the current structure
of the Democratic Services Team. 

Assessment of Resources

7. To support the further development of scrutiny activities and the 
servicing of the Joint Scrutiny Committee for the Swansea Bay City 
Deal, changes to the duties of scrutiny officers were made in 2019-
20, in particular, to relieve those officers of taking the minutes of 
meetings to concentrate on support to chairs of the scrutiny 
committees during meetings and to carry out preparatory work to 
support the work of the scrutiny committee outside of the meetings. 
This change has transferred the workloads involved in taking 
minutes to the committee/Member services team. It has not been 
possible to fully absorb this workload within the existing capacity 
and accordingly, it is necessary to establish additional capacity in 
the committee/Member services team to accommodate the 
additional workload. 

Tudalen80



8. Following the departure of the former Electoral and Democratic 
Services Manager, management oversight of Democratic Services 
has been provided on a temporary basis by the Principal Officer - 
Business Support Policy & Democratic Services. Given the 
significant new developments to be introduced by the Local 
Government and Elections (Wales) Bill it is necessary to establish 
permanent management capacity. 

9. A revised structure has been created and this is set out in Appendix 
2. The key changes are:

 Establishment of a full-time Democratic Services Manager role;
 Realignment of the existing Grade 5 role in the Service which is 

currently vacant to provide additional capacity to 
committee/Member services.

10. The changes proposed to the structure for Democratic Services can 
be d within the overall cash limit set across the budgets for the 
Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Digital Officer. A further 
assessment of resources will be needed when the Bill is enacted. 

Financial Impact:

11. The financial costs of the above changes can be met within existing 
salary budgets across the responsibilities of the Assistant Chief 
Executive and Chief Digital Officer.

Equality Impact Assessment:

12. No impact.

Workforce Impact:

11. These changes will provide for more manageable workloads for 
the Democratic Services workforce and also provide additional 
leadership and management capacity to implement the changes 
that will arise from the Bill and to prepare for the local government 
elections in 2022.

Tudalen81



Risk Management:

12. Without these changes, staff morale is likely to deteriorate and the 
quality of the work undertaken is likely to reduce.

Legal Powers:

12. Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011.

Consultation:

13. There is no requirement for external consultation on this item. 
Democratic Services staff have been consulted about the 
proposals in accordance with the Council’s Management of 
Change in Partnership Policy.

Recommendations:

14. That the Democratic Services Committee endorses the proposed 
structure set out in Appendix 2 and commends this change to 
Council.

Reason for Decision

15. To enable the Head of Democratic Services to discharge the 
statutory duty placed upon her as set out in the Local Government 
(Wales) Measure 2011

Implementation of Decision:
16. After the three day call in period.

Appendices:
17.  Appendix 1 – Current structure chart – 

Appendix 2 – Proposed structure chart – March 2020

List of Background Papers:
18. None

Officer Contact:
Mrs Karen Jones, Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Digital Officer:
Tel:01639 763284 or e-mail: k.jones3@npt.gov.uk

Tudalen82



1

Appendix 1

Democratic Services - January 2019

Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Digital Officer

Strategic Manager
Policy and Democratic Services 

Grade 13

Gra
Snr Scrutiny & Member Development Officer

Grade 8 
(0.68FTE)

Snr Committee/Member Services Officer 
Grade 8

Democratic Services Officer
Grade 7 

Democratic Services Officer
Grade 7 

Vacant - Democratic Services Officer 
Grade 7
(0.5FTE)

Democratic Services Officer
Grade 7 

Principal Officer
Policy and Democratic Services 

Grade 12

Democratic Services Officer
Grade 7
(0.6FTE)

Democratic Services Officer
Grade 7 

Vacant - Democratic Services Officer 
Grade 7 

(0.5 FTE) 

Democratic Services Assistant
Grade 3

T
udalen83



M
ae’r dudalen hon yn fw

riadol w
ag



Policy and Democratic Services Division
Proposed Staffing Structure (February 2020)

Strategic Manager

Policy& Dem Services 

(G13)

Democratic  Services 

Manager

(G10)*

Democratic Services 

Officer (G7) 3FTE

Snr Committee Services 

Officer (G8)

Democratic Services 

Asst (G5) 1FTE

Democratic Services 

Officer (G7) 2.6 FTE

Snr Scrutiny Officer

(G8) 0.68 FTE

Strategic Comms. 

Officer (G10)

Strategic Marketing 

Comms Adviser (G12)
Senior Executive Officer 

(G8)

Senior Electoral 

Services Officer 

(G8)

Asst Chief Executive’s 

PA (G5)

Chief Executive’s PA 

(G5)

Leader’s PA 

(G5)

Commercial 

Co-ordinator (G10)

Appendix 2

Notes: 

Detailed structure provided for the Democratic

Function only (blue shaded boxes).

Other management posts shown for context only.

Corporate Policy 

Officer (G10)

T
udalen85



M
ae’r dudalen hon yn fw

riadol w
ag



Version 2 – 23rd October 2019
Head of Democratic Services to decide agenda size and if additional meetings are required

WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 

MEETINGS TO START AT 9.30am AND FINISH AT 11.00am

DATE

                   Agenda Items

Type -
Decision, 
Monitoring 

or 
Information

Rotation -
Topical, 
Annual, 

Biannual, 
Quarterly, 
Monthly

Contact 
Officer/Head 

of Service

T
udalen87

E
item

 yr A
genda6



Version 2 – 23rd October 2019
Head of Democratic Services to decide agenda size and if additional meetings are required

14 
November 

2019  IT Reference Group Update

 Disability Audit Update

 Annual Member Survey

 IRPW Draft Report

 Update following meeting with the 
IRPW on 22 October 2019 on the 
Draft Annual Report

T
udalen88



Version 2 – 23rd October 2019
Head of Democratic Services to decide agenda size and if additional meetings are required

3rd 
March 
2020

 Assessment of Resources for 
Democratic Services

 IRPW Final Report

 Webcasting 

 Public Participation  

 Member Training and 
Development Priorities for 
2020/21

T
udalen89



M
ae’r dudalen hon yn fw

riadol w
ag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen91

Eitem yr Agenda8
Yn sgil paragraff(au) 14 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen103

Yn sgil paragraff(au) 14 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen107

Yn sgil paragraff(au) 14 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag


	Agenda
	2 Cofnodion y Cyfarfod Blaenorol
	3 Panel Annibynnol Cymru ar Gydnabyddiaeth Ariannol
	Annual Report 2020 - covering letter - English
	irpw - appendix 1
	Sup Reimbursement of Cost of Care - Panel principles - cover letter (English)
	Sup Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales - draft Supplementary Report - the Principles relating to the Reimbursement of Costs of Care

	4 Grwp Archwilio Anabledd
	Disability Audit Report V1

	5 Asesu Adnoddau ar gyfer y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd
	Resources- Structure app 1
	proposed structure for dem services feb 2020

	6 Blaenraglen Waith 2018-19
	8 Cynigion Gweddarlledu
	Webcasting Procedure Rules
	Webcasting Terms and Conditions


